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BOARDS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 13™ Annual Report on business and operations along with the
Audited financial statements and the Auditor’s report of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March,
2021.

Financial Highlights:

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Coffee Day Coffee Day Coffee Day Coffee Day
Enterprises Enterprises Global Global
Particulars Limited Limited Limited Limited
(Consolidated) (Consolidated) (Consolidated) | (Consolidated)
FY 21 FY 20 FY 21 FY 20
Net
Operational
Revenue 853 2,522 401 1,509
Finance charges 261 519 128 212
Depreciation 400 430 333 336
Profit Before
Tax (798) 701 (450) (458)
Income Tax (167) 22 (155) (150)
Total
Compressive
Income
attributable  to
the Owners of
the Company. (615) 1,886 (306) (318)

Performance Overview

During the fiscal year ended 31% March 2021, consolidated gross revenue decline by 66.16% driven by impetus
from Coffee & Multimodal Logistics mainly due to Covid and liquidity issues after the demise of our Chairman.
Consolidated loss after tax attributable to owners is Rs 584/- Crores for the year 2021 compared to Profit of Rs
1,884/-Crores for the previous year. There was a one time profit during previous year on sale of Mindtree Ltd
Shares. A detailed performance analysis is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis segment
which is annexed to this report.

State of The Company’s Affairs
The state of the Company affairs forms an integral part of Management Discussion & Analysis Report.
Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2020-21.



Transfer to Reserves:

In accordance to the provisions of Section 134(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013, (hereinafter “the Act”) the
Company has not proposed any amount to transfer to the General reserves of the Company for the financial year
2020-21.

Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any Deposits under Section 73 and Chapter V of the Act and the rules made
thereunder.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

The details of the loans, guarantees and investments are provided in the notes to the audited financial statements
annexed with the Annual report.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies:

As on 31st March, 2021, the Company has 39 subsidiaries (including indirect subsidiaries), 1 Associate
Companies and 5 Joint Ventures. The details of the Companies which are yet to commence operations and
which have been liquidated or sold during the year are mentioned in “Form AOC-1”, which is attached as an
“Annexure VIIL” A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries,
Associate Companies or Joint Ventures are mentioned specifically in the same annexure as mentioned above. In
accordance with Section 136(1) of the Act, the financial statements of the subsidiaries companies are available
on the Company’s official website post approval of the members.

In line with Regulation 24 and Regulation 46(2)(h) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (hereinafter “the Listing Regulations”) the Company has formulated a
detailed policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries and the said policy is available at the Company’s official
website and may be accessed at the link: http:/www.coffeeday.com/PDF/MATERIAL-SUBSIDIARIES.pdf

Management Discussion & Analysis Report:

As stated in Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Listing Regulations, the Annual report shall contain a detailed report on
Management Discussion & Analysis, which is hereto attached with the Annual report in “Annexure-1.”

Corporate Governance:

The report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding
proper compliance of Corporate Governance pursuant to the requirements of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations forms an integral part of the Annual Report stated in “Annexure-I1.”

Dividend Distribution Policy:

In accordance with Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2016, the Board of the Company has adopted Dividend Distribution policy in their
meeting held on 18th May, 2017, which aims at marking the right balance between the quantum of dividend
paid to its shareholders and the amount of profit retained for its commercial requirements. The said policy is
hoisted in the website of the company.”

Board Diversity:

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of diverse Board in its success. We believe that a truly
diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, industry experience that will help us
retain our competitive strength. The Company has evaluated the policy with a purpose to ensure adequate
diversity in Board of Directors, which enables them to function efficiently and foster differentiated thought
processes at the back of varied industrial and management expertise. The Board recognises the importance of a
diverse composition and has therefore adopted a Board Diversity Policy. The policy is made available at the
Company’s official website via link:
https://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/BOARD%20DIVERSITY %20POLICY.pdf




Board Evaluation and Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration:

In accordance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has specified the criteria and manner for effective evaluation of performance of ‘Board’, its ‘Committees’ and
‘Individual Directors’ carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and reviewed its implementation and compliance.

The detailed policy in compliance with Section 178(3) of the Act read along with Regulation 19 of the Listing
Regulations has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and is made accessible at the
Company’s official website at the following link:
https://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/NOMINATION%20&%20REMUNERA TION%20POLICY .pdf

Appointment/ Resignation/ Re-appointment of Board of Directors:

During the year under report, Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Independent Director whose 1st term of 5 years ended on
16.01.2020 and who was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company in
Board Meeting held on 8th January 2020, Further, appointed as an Independent Director of the company for the
next term of 5 years by the shareholders in their AGM held on 31% December 2020.

Mrs. C H Vasundhandara Devi (DIN: 07789047) who was appointed as Additional Director on 7th December
2020, further, appointed as Independent Woman Director of the company by the shareholders in their 12"
AGM held on 31* December 2020.

Mr. Giri Devanur (DIN: 00125603) who was appointed as Additional Director on 7th December 2020, further,
appointed as an Independent Director of the company by the shareholders in their 12" AGM held on 31%
December 2020.

Mr. Mohan Raghavendra Kondi (DIN: 01718628) who was appointed as Additional Director on 7th December
2020, further, appointed as an Independent Director of the company by the shareholders in their 12" AGM
held on 31 December 2020.

Mrs. Malavika Hegde, Non-Executive Director of the Company was appointed as a Whole-time Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the company by the Shareholders in their 12™ AGM held on 31* December 2020.

Post the financial year end 31* March 2021, Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Independent Director of the Company
resigned from his post due to personal reasons on 30™ June 2021.

None of the Directors of the Company as on 31* March 2021, are eligible to retire by rotation.

Significant Development during the Year

Post the unfortunate demise of Chairman Shri V G Siddhartha, the Company appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar
Malhotra Ex-DIG CBI assisted by M/s. Agastya Legal LLP, New Delhi consisting of Legal Professional’s head
by Senior Partner Dr. M. R. Venkatesh to scrutinize the books of accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year 2020-21, The Investigators submitted their investigation report on 24™ July 2020 to the
Company. The Investigation Report reported that, Rs 3,535 Crores is due from Mysore Amalgamated Coffee
Estates Limited (MACEL) to the seven subsidiaries of the company. The Company on the receipt of
Investigation Report appointed Justice. K.L. Manjunath, retired Judge of Hon. High Court of Karnataka to
suggest and oversee actions for recovery of the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated matters.

The Management of seven subsidiaries have decided to take a decision on recoverability of Rs. 3,535 Crores
which is due from MACEL to the subsidiaries of the Company after the receipt of report from Justice
K.L.Manjunath.

On compliance of all the required provisions of SEBI Regulations Trading of Securities on Stock Exchanges
has been resumed from 26™ April 2021.

The Management of the Company is putting its best efforts to get back the company on track.



The day to day operations of the Company are being managed by the promoters’ family and professional team
with the day to day help of the Board members to ensure protection of interest of all stakeholders viz,
shareholders, lenders, vendors, employees etc. The debt levels have reduced significantly from the beginning of
the financial year March 2021.

Director’s Responsibility Statement:

In Compliance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby confirms the
following:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

e The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

e The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e  The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e The Company is responsible for establishing and maintain adequate and effective internal
financial controls with regard to it business operations and in the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements, in particular, the assertions on the internal financial controls in
accordance with broader criteria established by the Company. Towards the above objective,
the directors have laid down the internal controls based on the internal controls framework
established by the Company, which in all material respects were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021.

e The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate. The Company has substantially
complied with material provisions of such acts and regulations as are relevant for its
operations.

Declaration by Independent Directors:

All the Independent Directors have given their declarations stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In the
opinion of the Board, they fulfil the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management.

Committees of the Board:

The Company has four main Committees of the Board i.e.:
(a.) Audit Committee,
(b.) Nomination and Remuneration Committee and,
(c.) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee.
(d.) Corporate Social Responsibility.

The detailed information on each of these committees including its composition, functioning and number of
meetings are disclosed in the Corporate Governance report annexed with the Annual report of the Company.



Meetings of the Board:

During the financial year 2020-21, the meetings of the Board of Directors were held eleven (11) times. Details
of these meetings and other Committee/General meetings are given in the report on Corporate Governance
Report attached with the Annual report.

Particulars of Contracts/arrangements with related parties:

Post the unfortunate demise of Chairman Shri V G Siddhartha, the Company appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar
Malhotra Ex-DIG CBI assisted by M/s. Agastya Legal LLP, New Delhi consisting of Legal Professional’s head
by Senior Partner Dr. M. R. Venkatesh to scrutinize the books of accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Investigators submitted their investigation report on 24" July 2020 to the Company. The Investigation
Report reported that, Rs 3,535 Crores is due from Mysore Amalgamated Coffee Estates Limited (MACEL) to
the seven subsidiaries of the company. The Company on the receipt of Investigation Report appointed Justice.
K.L. Manjunath, retired Judge of Hon. High Court of Karnataka to suggest and oversee actions for recovery of
the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated matters.

However, all the repetitive Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the FY 2020-21 were on an
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant Related Party
Transactions made by the Company during the year that required shareholders’ approval under Regulation 23 of
the Listing Regulations. Prior omnibus approval from the Audit Committee is obtained for transactions which
are repetitive in nature. Further, disclosures are made to the Committee on a quarterly basis.

Further, Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 in the Form AOC-2 have been enclosed as Annexure-IX pursuant to clause (h) of subsection (3) of Section
134 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

The Company has adopted a Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions and is made available on the
Company’s official website via web link: https://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/RPT%20POLICY .pdf

Material changes and commitment — if any, affecting the financial position of the Company from the end
of the financial year till the date of this Report:

During the year under report, Tanglin Developments Limited and the Company has sold the Way2wealth
Securities Private Limited to Shriram Ownership Trust.

Except this there has been no material change and commitment, affecting the financial performance of the
Company which has occurred from the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate to till the date of this report.

Change in nature of business:
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
& Outgo:

The information on conservation on energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
provided in “Annexure-III” to this Annual report.

AUDITORS:
a) Statutory Auditors:

Members of the Company have appointed M/s. Venkatesh & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors
of the company for the period of 5 years from the Conclusion of 12" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion
of 17" Annual General Meeting which will fall in the year 2025 in their 12" Annual General Meeting held on
31" December 2020.



b) Secretarial Auditor:

In accordance with Section 204 of the Act and the rules made there under, the Company has appointed M/s
HRB & Co., to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2021.
The Secretarial Audit report issued in this regard is attached as “Annexure-IV”.

¢) Cost Auditor:

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, the appointment of the Cost Auditors does not apply to the
Company.

d) Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed M/s A B S & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors of the Company.

Significant and material orders passed by the Courts/Regulators:

During the year under report there were no significant and material orders passed by Courts/Regulators have
been received by the company, however:

1. Exchanges had suspended the shares of the company from trading on 3™ February 2020 due to
non-submission of financial results under Reg 33 of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 for the quarter ending
on June 30, 2019 and September 30, 2019.

However, the Company now has submitted all the required financial results and has complied with
all the SEBI Regulations.

Exchanges on 16" April 2021 have given In-principle approval for trading of shares on Exchanges
and trading of shares has resumed from 26™ April 2021.

2. The company has submitted Investigation Report prepared by Ex-DIG of CBI Mr. Ashok Kumar
Malhotra and Mr. M.R. Venkatesh to SEBI, in connection to this SEBI raised certain queries on it
and we have clarified all the queries raised by SEBIL.

3. SEBI on 21st January 2021, issued a Show cause Notice to the Company under Rule 4(1) of the
SEBI (Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties) Rules, 1995. However, the company
has made a settlement application to SEBI on this behalf.

4. SEBI has issued summons to senior officers, directors of the Company and Subsidiary Companies
either to appear before Investigating Authority or cause to produce documents before Investigation
Authority of SEBI under section 11(2) and 11C(2), (3) of the Securities Exchange of India Act,
1992.

All the required information has been submitted to SEBI and the company is in continuous touch with
SEBI.

Extract of Annual Return:

An extract of the Annual return in form MGT-9 in compliance with Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with applicable rules made thereunder is annexed as “Annexure-V” and is placed on the website
www.coffeeday.com

Business Responsibility Report:

In compliance with the Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility Report forms
the part of this Annual Report as “Annexure-VI”.

Secretarial Standards:

The Company complies with all Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.



Internal Financial Control (IFC) and its Adequacy:

The internal controls of the Company operate through well documented standard policies and guidelines. The
Company has adequate internal financial control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business,
which helps in ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business. This system provide a reasonable
assurance of financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of
the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and
ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

All the significant internal audit observations and management actions thereon are reported to Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee reviews the operations and assesses the adequacy of the actions
proposed as well as monitors their implementation. The internal auditors conduct a quarterly follow-up for
implementation of all audit recommendations and the status report is presented to the Audit Committee
regularly.

The Company’s management has assessed the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting for
the year ended 31st March, 2021 and based on the assessment; believe that the system is working effectively.
The Statutory Auditors have issued a report on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems
over financial reporting.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:

As per the requirements laid down under Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has established the Whistle blower Policy which encourages Directors and
employees to bring to the Company’s attention, instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected incidents
of fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct that could adversely impact on Company’s operations
and business. The Policy provides that the Company investigates such incidents, when reported, in an impartial
manner and takes appropriate action to ensure that requisite standards of professional and ethical conduct are
always upheld. The practice of the Whistle blower Policy is overseen by the Audit Committee and no employee
has been denied access to the Committee.

During the year under Report, Mr. S.V. Ranganth, resigned from the Chairmanship of the Audit Committee and
Mr. K.R. Mohan took over the charge of Chairmanship of Audit Committee. Hence, the Whistle Blower Policy
was amended accordingly, Contact details of Chairman of Audit committee as under:

Name : K.R.Mohan

43 New No.22, 1st Floor 16th Cross,
8th Main, Malleswaram

Bangalore Karnataka 560055

Cell No.: 9844152676

Email id:kr_mohan@hotmail.com

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company’s official website and may be accessed through web
link: https://coffeeday.com/PDF/WhistleBlower.pdf

Particulars of Employees:

As stated in provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, a
statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the
limits set out in the said rules which includes the name of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration, forms part
of this annual report. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, the Board report is being sent to
the shareholders including the said statement.

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in
“Annexure-VII”.



Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, and on the recommendations of the CSR Committee comprising of Mr. S.V. Ranganath as
the Chairman and Mrs. Malavika Hegde and K.R. Mohan as Members, the CSR policy is adopted and approved
by the Board of the Company. The said policy has been hosted on the Company’s website and is available on
the link: http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/CSR-Policy-CDEL.pdf It lays down the purpose of formulation of the
policy, areas of focus, composition of Committee and CSR budget.

Green Initiatives:

In commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiative and going beyond to it, electronic copy of the Notice of
13th Annual General Meeting of the Company are sent to all Members whose email addresses are registered
with the Company/Depository Participant(s).

Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Work place:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder. The Policy aims to promote a healthy work environment and to provide protection to employees at
workplace and redress complaints of sexual harassment and related matters thereto. The Company has also
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee, known as the Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH)
Committee, to enquire into complaints of sexual harassment and recommend appropriate action.

Post the financial year 2020-21, there was a change in constitution of Internal Complaints Committee with the
following members.

1. Ms. Bhavna Halappa — Presiding Officer
2. Ms. Arundhati Mukoo — Internal member
3. Mrs. G. Vanajakshi N - External Member

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.

Board’s Response On Auditors’ Qualification, Reservation Or Adverse Remark Or Disclaimer Made:

I. Audit Qualification

Disclaimer of opinion or emphasis of matter on consolidated Audit Report

a. Disclaimer of opinion has been expressed in the reports of the Parent Company with regard to the
preparation of financial statements. It is observed that there has been a change in the percentage of shares
held by the Company in two of its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2021 vis-a-vis March 31, 2019, due to the
invocation of shares by the lenders of the subsidiaries. However, while considering the amount invested in
the subsidiaries, the Management of the Company has considered the erstwhile shareholding pattern prior
to dilution as the Management believes that the change in shareholding is temporary in nature and the
shares pledged will be redeemed back by the Company (refer to Note 62 of the consolidated Financial
Statements). However, these shares have been transferred to such lenders before March 31, 2021. We have
been informed that the lenders have not sold any of the shares invoked and consequently have not made
any adjustments to the loan outstanding. Accordingly, the Management believes that it is not possible to
attribute any sale value to the invoked shares. Consequently, the impact of the said transfer on the book
value of invoked shares of INR 156 Crores on the standalone financial statements cannot be ascertained.

Further, the impact of the aforesaid on this Statement, including but not limited to the profit attributable to
the non-controlling interest in the Company, cannot be ascertained. Accordingly, the level of compliance
to the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standards cannot be ascertained by us

b. In a letter dated July 27, 2019 signed by late Mr. V. G. Siddhartha, the Promoter and then Chairman and
Managing Director of the Parent Company, which has come to light, it was inter-alia stated that the
Management and auditors were unaware of all his transactions. Attention is drawn to Note 57 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, wherein, consequently, the Board of Directors have initiated an
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investigation into the circumstances leading to the statements made in the letter and to scrutinize the books
of accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. The investigation report submitted on July 24, 2020 has
concluded that a sum of INR 3,535 Crore is due from MACEL a related entity to the subsidiaries of CDEL
as on July 31, 2019. The report further concludes that out of this sum, INR 842 Crore was due to the
subsidiaries as on March 31, 2019 and the balance sum of INR 2,693 Crore is the incremental outstanding
which needs to be addressed. Further, the Board of the Company in the board meeting on August 21, 2020,
appointed Retired Hon’ble Justice Sri K L Manjunath, former Judge of Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka
to suggest and oversee actions for recovery of the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated
matters. The future course of action will be decided by the Management based on the decision taken by the
Hon’ble Justice Sri K L Manjunath. We are unable to comment on the appropriateness of the transactions,
including regulatory non-compliances, if any, and the recoverability of the amounts due in the absence of
requisite evidence not being made available to us and its impact to the Consolidated Financial Statement.

Further, the Auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures,
along with the auditors of 3 subsidiaries and 2 step-down subsidiaries, based on their review, have issued
a disclaimer of conclusion due to the possible impact of the recoverability of dues from MACEL.

In respect of the Parent Company and some of the subsidiaries, there are instances of non-compliance
with certain debt covenants and defaults in repayment of interest and borrowing as per the schedule of
repayment. We have been informed that during the year certain lenders have exercised their right to recall
the loan (refer Note 234 of the Consolidated Financial Statement). However, in the absence of the
adequate evidence, we are unable to comment on the consequential adjustments that might impact this
Statement on account of non-compliance with debt covenants.

The Group has Goodwill of INR 368 Crore arising on consolidation (Refer Note 6 of the Consolidated
Financial Statement). In view of the developments during the period, including the investigation report
submitted to the company, the Group is required to assess the said asset for impairment as required by Ind
AS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’. However, the same is pending as of March 31, 2021. In the absence of a
valuation report, we are unable to comment on whether any provisions on account of impairment is
required and the impact of the same on this consolidated financial statement.

Auditors of 3 subsidiaries based on their review, have issued a disclaimer of conclusion due to doubts on
the recoverability of dues from 3 parties aggregating to INR 245 Crore (refer to Note 42 of the
Consolidated Financial Statement).

Auditors of the subsidiary company have also highlighted non-compliance to the Indian Accounting
Standards governing Investment Property, on the grounds that the subject properties have not been valued
in with the methodology prescribed under the applicable Accounting Standard, but as per the value
prescribed by the Government of Karnataka (refer to Note 5c of the Consolidated Financial Statement).

We draw attention to the Note 61 of the Statement, wherein it is described that on March 10, 2021, the

National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) has initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(‘CIRP’) against one of the key step-subsidiaries of the Group, namely M/s. Sical Logistics Limited.
Considering the fact that the CIRP was initiated towards the end of the fourth quarter, the Management
has used the last reviewed financial results available (i.e., results until December 31, 2020) due to the non-
availability of results up to the date of loss of control.
Further, auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in-turn has 3 step down subsidiaries and 2 Joint ventures and the
auditors of 1 other subsidiary along with 2 other step-down subsidiaries have also emphasized that the
amounts recoverable from M/s. SICAL Logistics Limited, in the view of the Management, can be
ascertained only after the receipt of initial report from the Resolution Professional. Accordingly, no
provision is made against the same.

The auditor of 1 subsidiary has also highlighted that the Company (refer to Note 59 of the Consolidated
Financial Statement) is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and has sought a one-time exemption of the same and response from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
is awaited.

The auditors of 1 subsidiary and 1 step-down subsidiary issued a disclaimer of opinion due to non-
availability of appropriate evidence, confirmation of balances and statement of accounts with regard to
borrowings from certain lenders (refer Note 67 of the Consolidated Financial Statement).
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Material uncertainty relating to Going Concern

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared by the Management and Board of
Directors using the going concern assumption (refer to Note 60 of the Consolidated Financial Statement)..
The matters detailed in the above paragraphs may have a consequential implication on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Further, the material uncertainty over using the Going Concern
assumption has also been established by several other component auditors of the Group, as well. However,
the Group is confident of meeting its obligations in the normal course of business and accordingly the
accounts of the Group have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis.

Emphasis of matter

The Parent Company along with 1 of its subsidiaries has entered into an Agreement to sell Way2Wealth
Securities Private Limited and its certain subsidiaries to Shriram Ownership Trust (‘the purchaser’) (refer
Note 44 of the Consolidated Financial Statement). Based on the agreement, INR 12.10 Crore is receivable
by the company in form of preceding year’s tax refunds and SEBI deposits from the purchaser in form of
reimbursement, subject to realization. Further a sum of INR 2 Crore has been withheld by the purchaser
per the agreement. An exceptional profit of INR 15.51 Crore has been recognized on the said sale
transaction at the Group level.

Interest free loans to related parties

In case of 1 subsidiary, the concerned Auditor has emphasized that interest on the loans to related parties
has not been charged (refer to Note 51 of the Consolidated Financial Statement) and that the same is not
consistent as compared to earlier periods..

Outstanding income tax demand in relation to subsidiary The auditor of 1 subsidiary has emphasized
(refer to Note 43 of the Consolidated Financial Statement) on the outstanding income tax dues of INR
89.60 crores relating to for AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21.

Non availability of confirmation of balance In case of the Parent Company, 1 subsidiary, which in-turn
has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures and in the case of 1 subsidiary and 1 step-down
subsidiary, the concerned auditors have emphasized that balance confirmations in case of certain assets
and liabilities have not been provided to them. Reliance is placed on the books of accounts provided by the
Management (refer Note 67 to the Statement)

Provision of depreciation on vending machine cabinets fully. The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn
has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have drawn attention to the fact that the vending
machine cabinets at customers’ place are fully depreciated to the extent of INR 79.78 Crores as the
salvage value is described as Nil (refer Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statement).

Cases filed against certain subsidiaries in NCLT and non-provision of interest The auditors of 1
subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have drawn attention to the
details of cases filed against the company before NCLT (refer Note 44 of the Statement). Further, the
auditors have also emphasized that interest expense of INR 16.13 Crores in respect of credit facilities from
two lenders has not been recognized

Lenders to certain subsidiaries have Red flagged the credit facility The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in
turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have drawn attention to the fact that one of the
lenders have Red Flagged credit facility and lenders of the company have appointed a forensic auditor.
Pending receipt of such report, effect of the same on these financial statements is not ascertainable (refer
Note 65 of the Consolidated Financial Statement).

Categorization of a subsidiary by a banker

The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures has drawn
attention to categorization of the company as 'Fraud' by M/s. Lakshmi Vilas Bank (presently DBS Bank
India Limited) and further correspondence with the bankby the company is disclosed (refer Note 63 of the
Consolidated Financial Statement).

The auditor of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures has drawn
attention to the liquidation process of the foreign subsidiaries (refer Note 46 of the Consolidated Financial
Statement).
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t.  Impairment of investment made in bank
The Auditors of 2 step-down subsidiaries of the Company have emphasized that the Companies have
impaired the investments made in M/s. Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd and recognized impairment loss during the
year of INR 1.86 Crore (refer Note 15 of the Consolidated Financial Statement).

u.  Change in shareholding in step down subsidiary pending RBI Clearance The Auditors of 1 step-down
subsidiary of the Company has emphasized that there has been a change in shareholding of the Company
pending permission from Reserve Bank of India (Refer Note No.66 to the Consolidated Financial
Statement)

v. The Parent Company has also received a notice from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, calling for
information in connection with a proposed enquiry under Section 206 of the Companies Act, 2013 (refer to
Note 68 of the consolidated financial statement) which has been responded to by the Company. Pending
the outcome of the enquiry and related proceedings, we are unable to comment on the impact of the same
on the consolidated financial statement.

Following Are _The Responses From_The Board On Disclaimer of opinion or_emphasis of matter on
Consolidated Audit Report

a) Management believes that the change in shareholding is temporary in nature and the shares pledged
will be released back to the Company. Since there is no marketability for the shares invoked
management is unable to estimate the impact.

b) Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 to the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd, and
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, that the company has appointed Retired Hon’ble Justice
Sri.K.L.Manjunath former Judge of Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka to suggest and oversee actions
for recovery of dues from Mysore Amalgamated Coffee Estates Ltd. As on 31.03.2021 the amount due
by MACEL to various subsidiaries and joint venture of the company amounts Rs.3,491 crores.

¢) The Group has borrowings amounting to Rs. 1,898 crores as at 31 March 2021. There have been
certain covenant breaches with respect to certain borrowings taken by the group from various lenders.
Such breaches entitle the lenders to recall the loan. On the date of this statement, there have been
certain defaults in repayments of principal and interest of the loans and certain lenders have exercised
their rights including recall the loans.

d) The assessment of impairment, if any, remains to be done.

e) The group has a policy of carrying out impairment assessment at every year end. After reviewing
recoverability of the advance, in FY 2019-20, the subsidiaries of the company have created provision
for Capital advances, Supplier advance and doubtful debts amount to Rs.245 crores. However the
efforts for the recovery will continue.

f) There is no impact on the financials however the company could not disclose certain details as required
under IND AS.

g) Management has used the last reviewed financial results available (i.e.,results until December 31,
2020) due to the non-availability of results up to the date of loss of control. Regarding recoverability
the auditor has emphasized a factual matter.

h) The Company has applied one time exemption from NBFC provisions to RBI and company is awaiting
response from RBIL.

i) Management is following up with lenders to get the balance confirmations.

j)  These consolidated financial results for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared
on a going concern basis in view of the positive net worth of the Group amounting to Rs 3,896 crores
as of 31 March 2021, significant value in underlying businesses managed by subsidiaries / joint
ventures / associates, established track record of the Group to monetize its assets as demonstrated by
stake sale in Mindtree Limited (refer note 6 of this Statement), sale of Global Village Tech Park owned
by its wholly-owned subsidiary Tanglin Developments Limited (refer note 9 of this Statement), sale of
Way2Wealth Group entities (refer note 10 and 14 of this Statement), sale of stake held in Ittiam
Systems Private Limited (refer note 13 of this Statement), operational efficiencies and consequential
ability to service its obligations.



k) The auditors have emphasized a factual matter. The above are as per agreement with the party.

1) The auditor has emphasized a factual matter which does not require any accounting adjustments.
Tanglin Developments Limited (subsidiary) has not charged interest during the year, which is in
accordance with exemption under section 186(11) read with Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013

m) The auditor has emphasized a factual matter for which the impact has been addressed in financials.

n) In the opinion of management of respective companies, the amounts are realizable/ payable in the
ordinary course of business.

0) In the earlier years, to attract new customers, Coffee Day Global Limited (subsidiary) Vending
Division used to build certain custom-made cabinets at the customers’ locations.During the year, due to
pandemic, lot of vending machines were withdrawn from these locations. Custom build cabinets are
fixtures and cannot be removed and do not have any salvage value. In this situation, 29,996 cabinets
are discarded and the balance written down value aggregating to Rs 79.78 Crores are fully depreciated
during the year in the financial statements of Coffee Day Global Limited.

p) The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have
drawn attention to the details of cases filed against the company before NCLT (refer Note 25 of the
Statement). Further, the auditors have also emphasized that interest expense of INR 16.13 Crores in
respect of credit facilities from two lenders has not been recognized.

q) One of the lenders of the Coffee Day Global Limited (subsidiary) has Red Flagged the credit facility
provided to the Company. Hence the lenders of the company appointed a Chartered Accountant firm to
do a forensic audit as per the RBI guidelines. Pending receipt of such report no adjustment has been
carried out in these financial statements of Coffee Day Global Limited.

r) Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) has obtained information that Coffee Day Global Limited
(Subsidiary) has been categorized as fraud by M/s. Lakshmi Vilas Bank (LVB) presently DBS Bank
India Limited (DBIL). However, since Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) did not have any credit
facility or Guarantee extended with to LVB, Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) requested LVB to
provide the basis on which they have classified Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) as fraud vide
its letter dated 04.03.2021. Further Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) has requested LVB to clear
the fraud tag, as there is no basis. Coffee Day Global Limited (Subsidiary) is awaiting the reply from
LVB. However the above matter has not impacted the regular banking operations of the Coffee Day
Global Limited (Subsidiary)

s) The foreign subsidiaries of Coffee Day Global Limited (subsidiary) are under liquidation and the
process is ongoing and yet to conclude. However the Coffee Day Global Limited (subsidiary) does not
have any additional liability in respect of these limited liability corporations. Further 100% provision in
respect of investment in these foreign subsidiaries have already been made, and accordingly there is no
further impact on the financial statements of Coffee Day Global Limited (subsidiary).

t) This relates investment made by W2W. The auditor has emphasized a factual matter for which the
impact has been addressed in financials.

u) The erstwhile holding company of M/s Way2Wealth Capital Private Limited i.e, M/s.Way2Wealth
Securities Private Limited (W2WS) had entered into Share Purchase Agreement dated 31.03.2020, with
Intermediate holding company M/s. Tanglin Developments Limited (TDL). Through this agreement
M/s. Tanglin Developments Limited decided to hold the shares in M/s Way2Wealth Capital Private
Limited directly instead of holding it through its subsidiary M/s.Way2Wealth Securities Private
Limited. In accordance with the said share purchase agreement W2WS sold 25,90,000 equity shares in
M/s Way2Wealth Capital Private Limited, amounting to 25.90%, to TDL on 31.03.2020. To transfer
the balance shares, M/s Way2Wealth Capital Private Limited made an application before Reserve Bank
of India for permission, vide its letter dated 20.02.2020. In connection with the application RBI
requested certain details or clarifications vide its various letters. M/s Way2Wealth Capital Private
Limited has replied to those RBI letters on various dates. Pending RBI permission W2WS has sold
balance 74,09,994 shares to TDL on 22nd September, 2020.

V) The Company has furnished all the documents called for to the ROC.

Disclaimer of opinion or emphasis of matter on standalone Audit Report and Boards’ reply thereof:

a. We have not been provided with sufficient evidence with respect to recoverability of dues from group
companies amounting to INR 1,744 Crore (refer Note 7B of the Standalone Financial Statement). Further, we
have not been provided appropriate evidence about the recognition of fair value of the estimated loss allowance
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on corporate guarantee given to its subsidiary as required by Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’. We are
therefore unable to comment on the recoverability of the stated balance from group companies, fair value of
estimated loss allowance on corporate guarantee given to a subsidiary, and the impact on the Statement.

b. It is observed that there has been a change in the percentage of shares held by the Company in two of its
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2021 vis-a-vis March 31, 2019, due to the invocation of shares by the lenders of
the subsidiaries. However, while considering the amount invested in the subsidiaries, the Management of the
Company has considered the erstwhile shareholding pattern prior to dilution as the Management believes that
the change in shareholding is temporary in nature and the shares pledged will be redeemed back by the
Company (refer to Note 6 of the Statement).

However, these shares have been transferred to such lenders before March 31, 2021. We have been informed
that the lenders have not sold any of the shares invoked and consequently have not made any adjustments to the
loan outstanding. Accordingly, the Management believes that it is not possible to attribute any sale value to the
invoked shares. Consequently, the impact of the said transfer on the book value of invoked shares of INR 156
Crores on the standalone financial statements cannot be ascertained.

c. The Management of the Company has determined that no impairment is required to be recognized on its
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures with a carrying value of INR 1,866 Crore as at March
31, 2021, as required by Ind AS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’, particularly consequent to developments during this
period (as detailed in note 39 of the Standalone Financial Statement). Consequently, the value of investments
held by the Company in a subsidiary, which is the holding company of this step subsidiary, is required to be
assessed for impairment. We have not been provided with the indicators used and the assessment performed by
the Management in not considering impairment in respect of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. We
are therefore unable to comment on whether the value of investments recognized in the Statement is
appropriate.

d. The Statement has been prepared by the Management and Board of Directors using the going concern
assumption (Refer Note 37 of the Standalone Financial Statement). The matters detailed in the above
paragraphs may have a consequential implication on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We
are therefore unable to comment on whether the going concern basis for preparation of the standalone financial
results is appropriate.

Emphasis of Matters

e. In a letter dated July 27, 2019 signed by late Mr. V. G. Siddhartha, the Promoter and then Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, which has come to light, it was inter-alia stated that the Management and
auditors were unaware of all his transactions. The Board of Directors had initiated an investigation into the
circumstances leading to the statements made in the letter and to scrutinize the books of accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The investigation report submitted to the Board of Directors on July 24, 2020 has
concluded that Mysore Amalgamated Coffee Estates Limited (‘MACEL’) a related entity owes a sum of INR
3,535 Crore to the subsidiaries of CDEL as on July 31, 2019 of which a sum of INR 842 Crore was due to the
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2019 leaving a balance of INR 2,693 Crore as incremental outstanding which
needs to be addressed. Further, the Board of the Company in the board meeting on August 21, 2020, appointed
Retired Hon ' ble Justice Sri K L Manjunath, former Judge of Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka to suggest and
oversee actions for recovery of the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated matters. The future
course of action will be decided by the Management based on the decision taken by the Hon ble Justice Sri K L
Manjunath.

f. Attention is drawn to Note 13 and 16B of the Standalone Financial Statement on default of interest amount to
lenders on the borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2021.

g. We draw attention to Note 13 and 16B of the Standalone Financial Statement, wherein instances of non-
compliance with certain debt covenants have been described. We have been informed that during the year, one
lender has recalled the loan. However, in the absence of the adequate evidence, we are unable to comment on
the consequential adjustments that might impact this Statement on account of non-compliance with debt
covenants.
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h. We draw attention to Note 27 of the Standalone Financial Statement, wherein facts relating to the sale of
Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited and its certain subsidiaries has been described. Based on the
agreement, Rs. 4.63 Crore is receivable by the company in form of preceding year’s tax refunds and SEBI
deposits from the purchaser (Shriram Ownership Trust) in form of reimbursement, subject to realization.
Further a sum of Rs. 0.77 Crore has been withheld by the purchaser per the agreement. Exceptional Loss of Rs.
46.50 Crore has been recognized on the said sale transaction during the year.

i. We draw attention to the Note 38 of the Statement, wherein the Company has stated that Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process has been initiated in NCLT against one of its key step-subsidiary, M/s. SICAL Logistics
Limited (SLL), pursuant to which an Interim Resolution Professional has been appointed to look into the affairs
of the key step-down subsidiary. The Management is of the view that the recoverability of above amount from
SLL can be ascertained only after the receipt of report from the Resolution Professional and accordingly no
provision is made against the same.

J. We draw attention to Note 13 of the Standalone Financial Statement which mentions that confirmation of
balance from certain lenders have not been obtained. The principal and interest payable to such lenders as of
March 31, 2021 aggregates to Rs. 263.18 Crores. In the absence of adequate and sufficient audit evidence to
establish the amounts payable to the lenders, we are unable to provide our conclusion on the correctness of
these amounts reflected in the Statement and also on their consequential impact including potential tax
liabilities.

k. Attention is drawn to Note 40 of the standalone financial statement, where the Company has received a notice
from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, calling for information in connection with a proposed enquiry under
Section 206 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has responded to the inquiry and has furnished the
information called for. Pending the outcome of the enquiry and related proceedings, we are unable to comment
on the impact of the same on the standalone financial statement.

. As detailed in Note 36 of the standalone financial statement, the Company has filed an application seeking a
onetime exemption from registering itself as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) as required by Section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other related provisions. As at the date of this Statement a
response from the Reserve Bank of India is awaited. In the absence of such exemption, we are unable to
comment on the compliance with the aforesaid regulations and consequential impact, if any on the standalone
financial statement.

Following Are The Responses From The Board On Disclaimer of opinion or _emphasis of matter on
Standalone Audit Report

a. The subsidiaries of CDEL are in the process of disinvestment of their assets. The company is confident
that the subsidiaries will repay these advances in due course.

b. Management believes that the change in shareholding is temporary in nature and the shares pledged

will be released back to the Company. Since there is no marketability for the shares invoked

management is unable to estimate the impact

The valuation of these investments for assessing impairment remains to be done.

d. The standalone financial results for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a
going concern basis in view of the positive net worth of the Company amounting to Rs. 30,708 million
as at 31 March 2021, significant value in diversified portfolio of investments held in subsidiaries / joint
ventures / associates, established track record of the Company to monetize it's assets as demonstrated
by sale of stake in Mindtree Limited, sale of Global Village Tech Park owned by its wholly-owned
subsidiary Tanglin Developments Limited, sale of stake in Way2Wealth Group entities, profitable
resorts operations and consequential ability to service the obligations.

e. The auditors has emphasized a factual matter which does not require any accounting adjustments.

f.  The auditors have emphasized a factual matter. The necessary adjustments have been made in the
books.

g. The auditors have emphasized a factual matter. The company is making all efforts to correct the
situation.

h. The auditors have emphasized a factual matter. The above are as per agreement with the party.

i.  The auditors have emphasized a factual matter. The management awaits report from there solution
professional.

°
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Management is following up with lenders to get the balance confirmations.

k. The Company has furnished all the documents called for to the ROC.

1. The Company has applied one time exemption from NBFC provisions to RBI and company is awaiting
response from RBIL.

—.

II. Secretarial Audit Qualifications:

Under Regulation 30 of LODR:

1. Whereas in terms of the Regulation 30 (6) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall first disclose to stock exchange(s) of all events,
as specified in Part A of Schedule 111, or information as soon as reasonably possible and not later than
twenty four hours from the occurrence of event or information. The company could not comply the
same in the events:

a. Sale of shares of Way2wealth Securities Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) to Shriram Group.
b.  Disclosure of the resignation of Auditors within prescribed time.

2. Whereas in terms of the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 regarding delayed submission of financial result for the quarter ended 30.06.2020
and the quarter ended 31.09.2020. Company has also received notices of fine in this regard from the
Stock Exchanges. Since the company continued to be in non-compliance, the stock exchanges had
suspended the trading and have also issued Show cause notice for delisting of shares.

3. The board of directors of the top 2000 listed entities (with effect from April 1, 2020) shall comprise of
‘not less than six directors’. The company could not comply the same for Quarter ended 30.06.2020 &
30.09.2020.

Boards Reply: the Company has received the notice from SEBI in respect of the above matters and the
Company has clarified to SEBI through various mails. Also the Company has filed settlement application with
SEBI.

Risk Management and Assessment:

The Company is exposed to various risks considering the diversified parameters according to the different major
business sectors of the Company that is coffee business, and resort business. The Audit Committee oversees the
area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the business and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on continuing basis. The Company has incorporated sustainability in the
process, which helps the Board to align potential exposures with the risk appetite and highlight risks associated
with chosen strategies.

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors under Section 143(12):

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to
the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Statutory Disclosures:

None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified as per provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Your Directors have made necessary disclosures, as required under various provisions of the Act and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

General Disclosures:
a) Buy back of securities:

In accordance with Section 68 of the Act, the Company has not bought back any of its
securities during the year.

b) Sweat Equity:
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Day"
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares under the provisions of Section 54 of
the Act.
) Bonus Shares:

In terms of Section 63 of the Act, the Company had not issued Bonus Shares during the year
under review.

d) Employee Stock Option Plan:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 62 of the Act, the Company has not provided any Stock
Option to the Employees of the Company.

Acknowledgement:

The Directors would like to express their gratitude towards the Company's employees, customers, Banks and
institutions, investors and academic partners for their continuous support. They also thank the concerned
government departments and agencies for their co-operation. The Directors appreciate and value the
contribution made by every member of the ‘Coffee Day’ family.

Place: Bangalore For Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Date:30" June, 2021
Sd/- Sd/-
S.V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim-Chairman & Whole-time Director
Independent Director DIN: 00136524

DIN: 00323799

18



ANNEXURE-1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. Outlook
Global Economic Outlook

The global economy is climbing out from the depths to which it had plummeted during the lockdown in April.
But with the COVID-19 pandemic continuing to spread, many countries have slowed reopening and some are
reinstating partial lockdowns to protect susceptible populations. While recovery in China has been faster than
expected, the global economy’s long ascent back to pre-pandemic levels of activity remains prone to setbacks.

Although, vaccine approvals have raised hopes of a turnaround in the pandemic later this year, renewed waves
and new variants of the virus pose concerns for the outlook. Amid exceptional uncertainty, the global economy
is projected to grow 5.5% in 2021 and 4.2% in 2022.

Global growth is projected at 6% in 2021, moderating to 4.4% in 2022. The projections for 2021 and 2022 are
stronger than in the October 2020 WEO. The upward revision reflects additional fiscal support in a few large
economies, the anticipated vaccine-powered recovery in the second half of 2021, and continued adaptation of
economic activity to subdued mobility. High uncertainty surrounds this outlook, related to the path of the
pandemic, the effectiveness of policy support to provide a bridge to vaccine-powered normalization, and the
evolution of financial conditions.

Indian Economic Outlook

The economy was gradually turning towards recovery early this year until the much more severe second
COVID-19 wave hit India in April. The comforting news is that improving business sentiments, coupled with a
strong recovery among industrial nations, propelled growth in the January—March quarter of FY2020-21. While
substantial spending by the government provided the biggest boost to growth, private investments and goods
exports—in segments such as engineering goods, chemical products, and pharmaceuticals—did remarkably well
in the last quarter of the fiscal year.

While infection spread affects health and confidence, it is the mobility restrictions that hurt the economy the
most because they simultaneously impact both demand and supply. However, data suggests the impact on
demand has lingered longer than on supply this year. After the first wave, manufacturing and industrial activity
bounced back strongly. But consumer spending (in the GDP component) and the sectors requiring social
interaction, such as hospitality and travel, grew modestly, suggesting that pandemic-related uncertainties
weighed on consumers’ minds.

The second wave has probably accentuated the difference in demand and supply recovery further. This is
because different states enforced slightly more relaxed rules for industrial activity and goods movement this
time, compared to last year’s nationwide lockdown. Consequently, economic activity continued, albeit at a
slower pace, despite supply chain disruptions, logistics challenges, and lower productivity. The manufacturing
PMI dropped to a 10-month low of 50.8 in May 2021 and further to 48.1 in June.3 Industrial production growth
also fell in May and manufacturing activity regressed to the lowest levels since August 2020. Due to the
shutdowns of several car manufacturing plants, production of passenger cars and two- and three-wheelers in
May 2021 were 58% and 56.8% lower than their corresponding levels of April 2021, respectively. As the
infections gradually peaked and came down in June 2021, states opened up slowly and several supply-side
challenges started coming down.
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2. Industry Structure and Developments

a. Coffee Business:

Market Analysis

Coffee is the most popular and consumed brewed drink prepared from roasted coffee beans, the seed from
certain Coffea species. Further, the coffee market is segmented by product type, distribution channel, and
geography. On the basis of product type, the coffee market is segmented under whole-bean, ground coffee,
instant coffee, and coffee pods capsules. Based on the distribution channel, the market is segmented under the
channels of on-trade and off-trade. The off-trade channels will include supermarkets/ hypermarkets,
convenience stores, specialist retailers, and other channels. By geography, the market covers the major countries
in North America, Europe, Asia-Pacific, South America, and Middle East & Africa. For each segment, the
market sizing and forecasts have been done on the basis of value (in USD billion).

Revenue in the Coffee segment amounts to US$940m in 2021. The market is expected to grow annually by
7.18% (CAGR 2021-2025).

The global coffee market was valued at USD 102.02 billion in 2020, and it is projected to reach a CAGR of
4.28% during the forecast period of 2021-2026.

The main coffee importing and consuming markets in Europe, North America, and Asia are in the middle of the
COVID-19 crisis. Governments have imposed measures, like social distancing and lockdowns, in place, which
has had a huge impact on cafés, micro-roasters, restaurants, and other out-of-home outlets. However, the current
trend toward online shopping for at-home consumption is forcing retailers, roasters, and consumers to adapt to
this new reality. Therefore, this factor is expected to increase the consumption of coffee around the world. For
instance, companies such as Nestlé SA had reported strong retail demand for food and beverage products
globally, achieving 4.4% organic group sales growth in the first quarter of 2020. Coffee sales were particularly
robust as consumers stockpiled essential items during the pandemic.

The convenient forms of coffee, like coffee pods and capsules and instant coffee, are becoming popular among
the masses (especially in North America and Western Europe) to prepare good coffee in the comfort of home, in
less time. For instance: as per the survey conducted by the National Coffee Association in the United States,
more than 70% of the consumers prefer at-home coffee preparation.

The market is driven by multiple factors, a few being increasing demand for certified coffee products,
acceptance of single-serve coffee brew systems by the consumers, and constant innovation lead by top players in
the coffee market. In developed economies, some consumers are expected to switch from instant coffee to more
premium options for reasons of quality and flavor. Instant coffee was once considered a high-end product but
began to lose its base of younger consumers, which is changing the market dynamics.

Depending on coffee production, countries, like Brazil and Vietnam accounts for the highest production of
coffee, in terms of volume, owing to suitable coffee growing conditions. With the production of 3.6 billion
metric ton of green coffee, Brazil is the largest producer globally, followed by Vietnam, Colombia, Indonesia,
and Ethiopia.

Market Segmentation

The global coffee market is divided on the basis of its variety, form, distribution channel and regional demand.
On the basis of its variety, the market is classified into Robusta, Arabica and others. Based on its form, the
market is segmented into whole, ground and other forms. On the basis of its distribution channel, the market is
classified as non-store based and store-based.

b. Logistic Business
It has been awarded infrastructure status which has made it easier for investment inflows and has become a

major growth driver of the logistics industry. eCommerce is another major segment that is expected to support
the growth of the logistics industry during the forecast period.
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Increasing investments and trade points toward a healthy outlook for the Indian freight sector. Port capacity is
expected to grow at a CAGR of 5% to 6% by 2022, thereby, adding a capacity of 275 to 325 MT. Indian
Railways aims to increase its freight traffic from 1.1 billion tons in 2017 to 3.3 billion tons in 2030. Freight
traffic on airports in India has the potential to reach 17 million tones by FY40. Lack of supporting infrastructure,
automated material handling systems, and high manual process interference are some key areas where the Indian
air cargo industry lags its global peers.

Grant of infrastructure status to logistics, the introduction of the E-Way Bill, and GST implementation are set to
streamline the logistics sector in India. Setting up of a logistics division under the Department of Commerce,
technology upgrades, and development of dedicated freight corridors and logistics parks are also major moves to
upgrade the logistics landscape.

Logistics start-ups in India gained a substantial foothold after the onset of eCommerce, and there are several
new companies that are gaining traction in the industry. Online platforms have increased competition and
lowered freight costs with real-time data availability and a transparent value chain. It is imperative for logistics
service providers to innovate and adapt to the transforming logistics landscape.

c¢. Hospitality Business

The Indian tourism and hospitality industry have emerged as one of the key drivers of growth among
the services sector in India. Tourism in India has significant potential considering the rich cultural and historical
heritage, variety in ecology, terrains and places of natural beauty spread across the country. Tourism is also a
potentially large employment generator besides being a significant source of foreign exchange for the country.

In FY20, tourism sector in India accounted for 39 million jobs, which was 8.0% of the total employment in the
country. By 2029, it is expected to account for about 53 million jobs.

According to WTTC, India ranked 10th among 185 countries in terms of travel & tourism’s total contribution to
GDP in 2019. During 2019, contribution of travel & tourism to GDP was 6.8% of the total economy, ~ Rs.
13,68,100 crore (US$ 194.30 billion).

Market Size

India is the most digitally advanced traveler nation in terms of digital tools being used for planning, booking,
and experiencing a journey. India’s rising middle class and increasing disposable income has supported the
growth of domestic and outbound tourism.

During 2019, foreign tourist arrivals (FTAs) in India stood at 10.93 million, achieving a growth rate of 3.5% y-
o-y. During 2019, FEEs from tourism increased 4.8% y-o-y to Rs. 1,94,881 crore (US$ 29.96 billion). In 2019,
arrivals through e-Tourist Visa increased by 23.6% y-o-y to 2.9 million. In 2020, FTAs decreased by 75.5%
YoY to 2.68 million and arrivals through e-Tourist Visa (Jan-Nov) decreased by 67.2% YoY to 0.84 million. As
of March 2021, the e-Tourist Visa facility was extended to citizens of 171 countries.

By 2028, international tourist arrivals are expected to reach 30.5 billion and generate revenue over US$ 59
billion. However, domestic tourists are expected to drive the growth, post pandemic.

International hotel chains are increasing their presence in the country, and it will account for around 47% share
in the tourism and hospitality sector of India by 2020 and 50% by 2022.

As per the Federation of Hotel & Restaurant Associations of India (FHRAI), in FY21, the Indian hotel industry
has taken a hit of >Rs. 1.30 lakh crore (US$ 17.81 billion) in revenue due to impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Investments

India was globally the third largest in terms of investment in travel and tourism with an inflow of US$ 45.7
billion in 2018, accounting for 5.9% of the total investment in the country.

Hotel and Tourism sector received cumulative FDI inflow of US$ 15.61 billion between April 2000 and
December 2020.
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Indian government has estimated that India would emerge with a market size of 1.2 million cruise visitors by
2030-31. Dream Hotel Group plans to invest around US$300 million in the next 3-5 years for the development
of the cruise sector in India.

Government Initiatives

The Indian Government has realized the country’s potential in the tourism industry and has taken several steps
to make India a global tourism hub.

Some of the major initiatives planned by the Government of India to boost the tourism and hospitality sector of
India are as follows:

e In May 2021, the Union Minister of State for Tourism & Culture Mr. Prahlad Singh Patel participated
in the G20 tourism ministers' meeting to collaborate with member countries in protecting tourism
businesses, jobs and taking initiatives to frame policy guidelines to support the sustainable and resilient
recovery of travel and tourism.

e Government is planning to boost the tourism in India by leveraging on the lighthouses in the country.
71 lighthouses have been identified for development as tourist spots.

e The Ministry of Road Transport and Highways has introduced a new scheme called ‘All India Tourist
Vehicles Authorisation and Permit Rules, 2021°, in which a tourist vehicle operator can register online
for All India Tourist Authorisation/Permit. This permit will be issued within 30 days of submitting the
application.

e In February 2021, the Ministry of Tourism under the Government of India's Regional Office (East) in
Kolkata collaborated with Eastern Himalayas Travel & Tour Operator Association (resource partner)
and the ITAS School of Management as (knowledge partner) to organise an ‘Incredible India Mega
Homestay Development & Training’ workshop. 725 homestay owners from Darjeeling, Kalimpong and
the foothills of Dooars were trained in marketing, sales and behavioural skills

e On January 25, 2021, Union Tourism and Culture Minister Mr. Prahlad Singh Patel announced plan to
develop an international-level infrastructure in Kargil (Ladakh) to promote adventure tourism and
winter sports.

e The Indian Railway Catering and Tourism Corporation (IRCTC) runs a series of Bharat Darshan tourist
trains aimed at taking people to various pilgrimages across the country.

e On November 4, 2020, the Union Minister of State (IC) for Tourism & Culture Mr. Prahlad Singh Patel
inaugurated the “Tourist Facilitation Centre” facility constructed under the project “Development of
Guruvayur, Kerala” (under the PRASHAD Scheme of the Ministry of Tourism).

e The Ministry of Tourism’s ‘DekhoApnaDesh’ webinar series titled ‘12 Months of Adventure Travel’
on November 28, 2020, is likely to promote India as an adventure tourism destination.

e On January 26, 2021, Maharashtra Chief Minister Mr. Uddhav Thackeray inaugurated Balasaheb
Thackeray Gorewada International Zoological Park in Nagpur. It is India’s largest zoological park
spread over 564 hectares and expected to attract ~2.5 million tourists a year.

e The Ministry of Tourism developed an initiative called SAATHI (System for Assessment, Awareness
& Training for Hospitality Industry) by partnering with the Quality Council of India (QCI) in October
2020. The initiative will effectively implement guidelines/SOPs issued with reference to COVID-19 for
safe operations of hotels, restaurants, B&Bs and other units.

e Ministry of Tourism launched Dekho Apna Desh webinar series to provide information on many

destinations and sheer depth and expanse on the culture and heritage of India.
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e  Statue of Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel, also known as ‘Statue of Unity’, was inaugurated in October 2018.
It is the highest standing statue in the world at a height of 182 metre. It is expected to boost the tourism
sector in the country and put it on the world tourism map.

e Under Budget 2020-21, the Government of India has allotted Rs. 1,200 crore (US$ 171.70 million) for
development of tourist circuits under Swadesh Darshan for eight Northeast states.

e Under Budget 2020-21, the Government of India has allotted Rs. 207.55 crore (US$ 29.70 million) for
development of tourist circuits under PRASHAD scheme.

Risks Concerns and threats

Financial risk
If the Company's cash flow proves inadequate to meet its financial obligations, its status as a going concern
might be invoked.

Competition risk
With growing westernization and increase in the penetration of global players and growing popularity of
individual themed cafés, it might be a challenge for the Company to maintain its existing consumer base.

Regulatory risks

Operating in the food industry space is subject to various regulatory risks with respect to failure of compliance
to quality standards and various regulations imposed by the government policies. Failure to meet with the
standards might result in legal implications and loss of business.

Climatic risks

Bad monsoon might result in lower production of coffee leading to soaring high coffee prices. Passing it to the
customers would incur menu costs and loss in price sensitive segment of consumer base. Thus, inadequate
monsoon might result in falling revenues and profit.

Economic risk

Sluggish growth of the economy impacts the spending power reducing consumption. Overall macroeconomic
instability results in a lower demand. Thus fluctuations in the economic scenario possess a major risk to the
business of the company. Performance of the backward and forward linked industries is of vital importance for
the logistics sector to perform.

Social and political risk

Government policies play a major role in determining the fate of an industry. Relaxation of various regulations
and simplification of tax regime give the much needed push to the concerned sectors. Change in orientation with
change in government possesses a threat to the business.

Pandemic Risk:

A pandemic is a rapidly spreading infectious disease that may pose a global threat. Pandemics can create social
and economic chaos. They can severely upset business operations by disrupting the supply chain and causing
high absenteeism. This may impede your ability to deliver products and services to your customers.

Managing the threats posed by a pandemic is critical for business survival. A business continuity plan can help
you manage the impacts of a pandemic and meet your legal obligations to staff to ensure their safety.

Business continuity plan will detail business's risk management strategy and business impact analysis. It will
describe how business intends to respond to an incident, sets out a recovery plan and defines policies and
procedures for managing staff and communication.
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3. Segment Wise Performance
Company’s financial overview
Statement of profit and loss analysis

Net Revenue

Net revenues decreased by 67% to Rs.853 Crores in FY 2020-21, compared with Rs.2,552 Crores reported
in FY 2019-20 mainly due to liquidity issues in the group after the demise of our Chairman and also the
impact of lockdown due to COVID 19.

Operating Profit

Operating profit (EBITDA) decreased by 108% to loss of Rs.137 Crores in during FY 2020-21 from
Rs.1650 Crores in FY 2019-20. EBITDA of FY 20-21 includes Rs. 151 crores loss on account of market
valuation of groups' holding of equity shares in Sical Logistics Limited and exceptional gain of Rs.16
crores on sale Way 2 Wealth Securities Private Limited. EBITDA FY 2019-20 includes exceptional gain
amounting to Rs. 1,975 Crores primarily on account of sale of equity stake held in Mindtree Limited. The
regular EBITDA has impacted due to liquidity crunch.

Depreciation

Depreciation for the year under review stood at Rs.400 Crores, compared with Rs. 430 Crores recorded in
the previous year, down 7% on a y-o-y basis. Decrease in depreciation mainly due to termination of leases
during the year.

Finance costs
Finance cost for the year under review decreased by 50% from Rs.519 Crores to Rs.261 Crores.

Net profit

Consolidated net loss for the year under review attributable to share holders of the company stood at
Rs.584 Crores over profit of Rs.1884 Crores in the previous financial year. Net loss for FY 20-21 includes
Rs. 151 crores loss on account of market valuation of groups' holding of equity shares in Sical Logistics
Limited and exceptional gain of Rs.16 crores on sale Way 2 Wealth Securities Private Limited. Net profit
for FY 2019-20 includes exceptional gain amounting to Rs. 1,828 Crores primarily on account of sale of
equity stake held in Mindtree Limited and gain amounting to Rs. 1190 Crores on account of sale of global
village property held by Tanglin Developments Limited.

Balance Sheet analysis

Net worth

The Company’s net worth stood at Rs.3,896 Crores as on 31% March, 2021, decreased by 21%, compared
with Rs.4,937 Crores as on 31% March, 2020. The net worth comprised of paid-up equity share capital
amounting to Rs.211.3 Crores as on 31% March, 2021 (211,251,719 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
up) and Non-controlling interests of Rs.180 Crores. The Company’s reserves and surplus stood at Rs.3,505
Crores as at 31% March, 2021.

Loan profile

The total loan funds stood at Rs.1,779 Crores which comprises of long-term borrowings of Rs.1,263
Crores and short-term borrowings of Rs.516 Crores and the Company’s net debt as on 31* March, 2021
stood at Rs.1,731 Crores.

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities (excluding borrowings) stood at Rs.301 Crores, comprising of other financial
liabilities Rs.289 Crores, deferred tax liabilities Rs.8 Crores, and provisions amounting to Rs.4 Crores.

Current liabilities (excluding current borrowings of Rs.516 Crores and current maturities of long-term
borrowings amounting to Rs.1028 Crores) stood at Rs.634 Crores, comprising of other financial liabilities
(excluding current maturities of long-term borrowings) of Rs.350 Crores, trade payables of Rs.149 Crores,



other current liabilities Rs.18 Crores, current tax liabilities Rs.89 Crores, provisions Rs.6 Crores and
liabilities associated with assets held for sale amounting to Rs.22 crores.

Total assets

The Company’s total assets decreased to Rs.6,610 Crores in 2020-21 from Rs.9,528 Crores in 2019-20,
representing decrease of 31%. This decrease in total assets is on account loss of control in integrated
multimodal logistics business (Sical Logistics Limited).

Investments

The Company’s investments (current and non-current) including equity accounted investees during the
year under review decreased to Rs.460 Crores from Rs.493 Crores in the previous year, decrease of 7%
over the previous year.

Current and Non-current assets

Inventories decreased by 79% to Rs.16 Crores during the year under review from Rs.76 Crores in FY
2019-20. Inventories comprise of raw material inventory of Rs.15 Crores, and finished goods inventory of
Rs.1 Crores.

Trade receivables of the Company stood at Rs.55 Crores in FY2020-21, decrease of 81% over the previous
year. This decrease is on account loss of control in integrated multimodal logistics business (Sical
Logistics Limited).

The Company had on its books cash and bank balances including deposits worth Rs.47 Crores as on 31%

March, 2021 as compared to Rs.103 Crores in 31st March, 2020.

Tax assets increased by 27% to Rs.427 Crores during the year under review from Rs.340 Crores. Total tax
assets for FY 2020-21 comprise of deferred tax assets, (net) Rs.385 Crores and current tax assets, (net)
Rs.42 Crores.

Other financial assets stood at Rs.1,116 Crores as compared to Rs.1167 Crores in the previous year.

Details of significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in the key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof, including:

1\?5 Particulars 2021 2020
1 Debtors turnover 4.99 5.95
2 Inventory turnover * 3.59 7.67
3 Interest coverage ratio(Refer note 1) -2.06 235
4 Current ratio 1.83 1.60
5 Debt equity ratio (Refer note 2) 0.46 0.61
6 Operating profit margin (%) (Refer note 1) -16.01% 64.66%
7 Net profit margin (%) (Refer note 1) -80.04% 72.42%
8 Return on Net Worth(%)(Refer notel) -17.53% 37.45%

*Inventory turnover ratio pertains to Coffee business.

Note:

1. Decrease in interest coverage ratio, Operating Profit Margin, Net Profit Margin and Return on Net
Worth is due to huge loss incurred due to COVID-19 and liquidity issue after the death of the
promoter.

2. Decrease in mainly due Exclusion of SICAL debt in consolidation due to appointment of RP.

There is no significant change (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in the key financial ratios except as mentioned above.
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There is no significant change (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in the key financial ratios except as mentioned above.

Operational overview

Coffee Day Enterprises is present across the following sectors:

Coffee, logistics and hospitality. However, 47% of the consolidated net revenue of the Company was
contributed by the coffee business during the year under review, followed by 45% from the logistics
business and 8% from other operations.

Coffee Business

Gross Revenue from the Company’s consolidated coffee business stood at Rs.401 Crores in 2020-21,
contributing 47% to the consolidated topline, representing a decline of 73% over 2019-20. The reason for
decline is due to temporary closure of export business and liquidity issue of the group. Revenue from the
retail division decreased by 71 % from Rs.1,270 Crores in 2019-20 to Rs.366 Crores over 2020-21.
Consolidated Loss Before Tax is Rs. 450 Crores for FY 2020-21 compared to 458 Crores for Previous Year
FY 2019-20.

Coffee Day Global Limited’s flagship café chain brand Café Coffee Day (CCD) owns 572 cafes in 165
cities and 333 CCD Value Express kiosks. There are 36,326 vending machines that dispense coffee in
corporate workplaces and hotels under the brand.

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
No. of cafes 1,752 1,192 572
No. of cities of 243 208 165
presence
No. of CCD Value 537 412 333
Express kiosks
No. of operational 56,799 58,697 36,326
vending machines

Hospitality Business

The Company owns and operates luxury boutique resorts, one directly through our Company, and two
through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Coffee Day Hotels & Resorts Private Limited (CDHRPL), under the
brand ‘The Serai’. These resorts are located at Chikmagalur, Bandipur and Kabini, all in Karnataka. The
Company also with management control holds equity interest in a luxury resort in the Andaman and
Nicobar islands.

Revenue from our hospitality business decreased by 16% from Rs.30 Crores in FY 2019-20 to Rs.25 Crores
in FY 2020-21.

Note: All information presented in Indian rupee has been rounded off to the nearest crore unless otherwise
indicated.

4. Internal Control Systems And Their Adequacy:

The Company has intended to increase transparency and accountability in an organization’s process of
designing and implementing a system of Internal Control. The framework requires a Company to identify
and analyze risks and manage appropriate responses. The Company has successfully laid down the
framework and ensured its effectiveness. The Company’s Internal Controls are commensurate with its size
and the nature of its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to
recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes,
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The Company has a well-defined delegation of power with authority limits for approving revenue as well as
expenditure. Processes for formulating and reviewing annual and long term business plans have been laid
down.

M/s. Venkatesh & Co, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have audited the Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report and have issued a report on the Internal Control over financial reporting (as
defined in section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013).

The Company has appointed ABS & Co, Chartered Accountants to oversee and carry out Internal Audits.
The Audit is based on an Internal Audit Plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the Audit
Committee, the conduct of Internal Audit is oriented towards the review of Internal Controls and risks
Additionally, there has been a continued focus on IT enablement and computerization of key process
controls through the Systems to maximize automated control transactions across key functions.

The Internal Audit function endeavors to make meaningful contributions to the Organization’s overall
governance, Risk Management and Internal Controls. The Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by
Internal Auditors. Suggestions for improvement are considered and the Audit Committee follows up on
corrective actions taken by the Management. The Audit Committee also meets the Company’s Statutory
Auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adequacy of Internal Control Systems and keeps the
Board of Directors informed of its major observations periodically. Based on its evaluation (as provided
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable clause of SEBI Listing Regulations), the
Audit Committee has concluded that as of 31st March, 2020, the Internal Financial Controls were adequate
and operating effectively.

5. Material Developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations Front And Number of People
Employed:

At a Group level, we have built a reputation of being able to attract and retain key talent.

People & Culture

Our employees make a difference to our customers. Delivering customer promise across the Group is a
critical component of our success. It therefore becomes imperative that our employees deliver the best in
class service. We are very passionate and determined about being one of the best in the industry verticals
we operate and are committed to be a leading employer in our space.

Recruitment

We have strengthened our entry level and middle management lateral hiring process across our businesses.
We have established relationships with over 75 premier universities, colleges and management schools in
India. We get almost 10 times the application for each Management / Sales Trainee we hire at campus. We
have a robust process to hire middle & senior management staff through need-based hiring. Our selection
process has innovative “practical project” built in for senior level leadership hiring, so as to test their ability
to lead a P&L or make change happen.

Training and Development

Building skills for entry level staff has been a significant effort, and we continue to work with skilling
institutions / NGO’s, our own Skilling centres as well with several state government skilling programs. At
management level, we have our well established “Trainee” programs across businesses or direct induction
at mid-levels through a well-designed induction program for lateral hires.

Some of our popular programs have included the “Sales Trainee” program at Vending business, OT / LDP
program at CCD, Management Trainee program at Retail Logistics to name a few. We have also partnered
with five other well-known companies and formed an “Exchange Consortium” and have offered Leadership
Development / learning opportunities for our Senior Leaders. We also continue to invest and grow our
diversity staff including the hearing challenged.

Compensation
Our employees across various business receive competitive salaries and benefits within the industries they
operate. We have started introducing a “Variable Pay” program selectively so as to drive a Performance
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culture. The “Group Retention Policy Program” is selectively used to attract and retain key talent.
Increasingly we will use sales incentive / performance bonus to drive a performance culture.

There were no days lost due to any industrial strife or labor issues.

Place: Bangalore For Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Date: 30" June, 2021
Sd/- Sd/-
S.V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim-Chairman & Whole-time Director
Independent Director DIN: 00136524

DIN: 00323799

28



COFFee
Day

ANNEXURE-I1I1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”), the Company
submits the detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 containing
the matters mentioned in the said Regulations with respect to the Corporate Governance requirements:

Company’s philosophy Corporate Governance:

The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices, as it constitutes the
strong foundation on which successful enterprises are built to last. The Company ensures fiscal accountability,
ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all the stakeholders including regulators, employees, customers,
vendors, investors and the society at large. The Corporate Governance philosophy of your Company ensures
transparency in all dealings and in the functioning of the management and the Board. These policies seek to
focus on enhancement of long-term shareholder value without compromising on integrity, social obligations and
regulatory compliances.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including all the Directors. In addition, the
Company has adopted the same for their Non-executive director which includes Code of Conduct for
Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter “the Act”). The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s official
website at the web link: http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/CODE-OF-CONDUCT .pdf

Board of Directors:

Composition, Category and Profile of Directors:

As per the Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Act, the Board of the Company
comprises of an optimal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors,(including one
woman Director) representing a judicious mix of in-depth knowledge and experience. The composition of the
Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Act.

During the year under Report, members of the company appointed three new Independent Directors to the Board
of the Company (including one Independent Woman Director), namely, Dr. Vasundhara Devi, Mr. K. R. Mohan
and Mr. Giri Devanur in the 12" Annual General Meeting held on 315 December 2020.

Next, Mrs. Malavika Hegde, who was a Non-Executive Director of the Company, was appointed as Whole-time
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company by the shareholders in 12" Annual General Meeting held
on 31t December 2020.

Post the financial year 2020-21, Dr. Albert Hieronimus, was an Independent Director of the Company resigned
from his post on 30" June 2021.

However, As on 31% March 2021, the Board Consists of five Independent Directors namely, Mr. S.V.
Ranganath ,Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Dr. Vasundhara Devi, Mr. K. R. Mohan and Mr. Giri Devanur are on the
Board who are management professionals and technocrats and are senior, competent and highly respected
persons from their respective fields. The brief profile of each Director on the Board is available on the
Company’s official website at the web link: https://coffeeday.com/PDF/ProfileofBoardofDirectors.pdf

The composition and category of Directors as on date are as follows:*

Name of the Director Category
Mr. S.V. Ranganath Interim Chairman, Independent and Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Malavika Hegde** Promoter group, Whole-time Director & Chief Executive
Officer
Dr Albert Hieronimus*** Independent and Non-Executive Director
Dr. Vasundhara Devi Woman Independent and Non-Executive Director
Mr. K.R.Mohan Independent and Non-Executive Director
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| Mr. Giri Devanur | Independent and Non-Executive Director

|

(* The above information is for the Company i.e. Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (CDEL). Each subsidiary has
got its own Directors and KMPs)

(**Non-Executive Director up till 6th December 2020 and Appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer on 7th December 2020)

(*** Resigned from Directorship from the Company on 30" June 2021)

Meetings and attendance record of Directors:

The Listing Regulations requires the Board to meet at least four times a year. The intervening period between
two Board meetings was well within the maximum gap of 120 days. The tentative Board meeting dates are
planned well in advance. These meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The Board members, in
consultation with the Chairman, may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. All major agenda
items are backed by comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions.
Agenda papers are generally circulated well in advance prior to the Board meeting. The Agenda provides the
following information inter-alia to the Board and the Committee:

Annual operating plans and budgets.

Capital budgets and any updates.

Quarterly results and its operating divisions or business segments.

Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board.

The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of Board of
Directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.
Show cause, prosecution notices and penalty notices, if any.

If there are any fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution
problems.

Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-payment for
goods sold by the Company.

Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including
any judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the listed entity or taken
an adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have negative implications on the listed entity.
Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.
Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in Human
Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme etc.

Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of
business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks of
adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

Non-compliance of any statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as hon-payment
of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

During the financial year 2020-21, Board of Directors met eleven (11) times as on:
1.

©oN Ok wWwN

17" July, 2020

24" July, 2020

3 August, 2020,
10" August, 2020,
21t August, 2020,
30" August, 2019

7" September, 2020,
7" November, 2020,
25" November 2020,

10. 7" December, 2020,
11. 1% February 2021, and
12. 9" February 2021
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None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. Further, none of them
is @ member of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five committees across all the public
companies in which he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding committee positions in other public
companies as on March 31, 2021 have been made by the Directors.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year
and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the number of Directorships and Committee
Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in other public limited companies as on March 31, 2021 are given
below. Other directorships do not include directorships of private limited companies, foreign companies and
companies under Section 8 of the Act. For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees,
chairpersonship and membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been
considered as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.

Name of the Director No. of Board No. of Board meeting Attendance at the last AGM
Meeting held attended i.e. 31.12.2020
Mrs. Malavika Hegde 11 11 Yes
Shri. S.V. Ranganath 11 11 Yes
Dr Albert Hieronimus 11 11 Yes
*Dr. Vasundhara Devi 2 1 Yes
*Mr. K.R. Mohan 2 2 Yes
*Mr. Giri Devanur 2 1 Yes

*Dr. Vasundhara Devi, Mr. K.R. Mohan and Mr. Giri Devanur appointed on the Board as Independent Directors
of the Company in 121" Annual General Meeting held on 31.12.2020.

Name of the Director Directorships in Other Public Companies
Mrs. Malavika Hegde 2
Mr. S.V. Ranganath 4

Dr Albert Hieronimus -

Dr. Vasundhara Devi -

Mr. K.R. Mohan -

Mr. Giri Devanur -

*Dr. Vasundhara Devi

Details of Directorship in other listed companies:
Name of other listed entities where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directorship:

s Name of listed entities in which
Né Name of the Director the concerned Category of Directorship
' Director is a Director

1. Mrs. Malavika Hegde - -

2. Mr. S.V.Ranganath Bosch Limited Non-Executive Independent Director
3. Dr. Albert Hieronimus - -

4, Dr. Vasundhara Devi - -

5. Mr. K.R. Mohan - -

6. Mr. Giri Devanur - -

Details of Membership/Chairmanship of Directors in Board Committees:

Following is the list of Memberships/Chairmanships of Directors in the Committees* of the Listed companies in
which they are holding directorships:

S. . No. of Committee* Memberships/Chairmanship held in
No. Name of the Director Listed Comp?anies P

1 Mrs. Malavika Hegde** -

2 Mr. S.V. Ranganath*** 2 Memberships

3 Dr Albert Hieronimus****
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4 Dr. Vasundhara Devi -
5 Mr. K.R. Mohan 1 Membership(including 1 as Chairperson)
6 Mr. Giri Devanur -

*Includes Only Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees

**Mrs. Malavika Hegde was a chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee up till 6™ December 2020.
*** Shri S. V. Ranganath,, was a chairman of audit committee up till 6" December2020.

****Dr Albert Hieronimus resigned from his post on 30" June 2021.

Shareholding of Directors:

. . . Details of Shareholding as at
Name of the Director Nature of Directorship March 31, 2021
. . . . 1,15,402

Mrs. Malavika Hegde Promoter Group, Whole-time Director

M. S.V. Ranganath Independent a_nd Non-Executive i
Director

Dr. Albert Hieronimus Independent and Non-Executive )
Director

Dr. Vasundhara Devi Independent and Non-Executive )
Director

Mr. K.R. Mohan Independent and Non-Executive )
Director

Mr. Giri Devanur Independent and Non-Executive )
Director

Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors

The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required
in the context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

i) Knowledge on Company’s businesses, policies and culture (including the Mission, Vision and Values) major
risks / threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates

ii) Behavioural skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to
the growth of the Company

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, Administration, Decision
Making,

iv) Financial and Management skills
v) Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business
Inter-se relationship among Directors:

There is no inter-se relationship amongst the Directors of the Company.
Re-appointment of Directors:

Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Independent Director of the Company was appointed for the second term in the 12%
Annual General Meeting held on 315 December 2020. However, Dr. Albert resigned from his post on 30™ June
2021.

Mrs. Malavika Hegde, who was a Non-Executive Director of the company up till 6" December 2020, was
appointed as Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 December 2020.

Members of the Company in their 12" Annual General Meeting held on 315t December 2020, Appointed Dr.
Vasundhara Devi, Mr. K.R.Mohan, and Mr. Giri Devanur as Independent Directors of the Company, who were
appointed by the Board as Additional Directors on 71" December 2020.
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Hence, There are no Directors who are liable to retire by Rotation as per section 152(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 as on 31t March 2021 as five out of six directors of the Company are Independent Directors and one
director is Whole-time director and Chief Executive Officer of the company..

Notice of interest by Senior Management personnel:

The Board has noted that no material financial and commercial transactions have been entered into between the
Company and Senior Management team, where they have personal interest.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors:

As per Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations and Schedule VI of the Act, the Company in its routine
course of action familiarizes its Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in
the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, etc. through various orientation
programmes which includes induction of new Directors and other initiatives to update the Directors on an on-
going basis. The Familiarization Programme framed for the Independent Directors is disclosed on the
Company’s official website and may be accessed at the web link:
http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/FAMILIARISATION%20PROGRAMME%20FOR%201D.pdf

Meeting of Independent Directors:

A meeting of Independent Directors was held on 9" February 2021 in terms of the requirements of the Act and
Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations. The meeting was held without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the Management. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Board and the Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board.

Board Committees:

The Company has constituted various Committees for the smooth functioning of the Board. There are Six (6)
Board Committees which comprise of Three (3) statutory committees and Three (2) other committees that have
been formed considering the needs of the Company and best practices in Corporate Governance.

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee Statutory Committees
3. Stakeholder Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Other Committees
5. Executive Committee

The composition of all the Board Committees are in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing
Regulations, wherever applicable. Details of Board Committees and other related information are provided as
hereunder:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Composition and Category Terms of reference Other details
1. Mr.  K.R  Mohan*, | The terms of reference of the Audit Committee | ¢ Majority of members of the
Chairman of Audit | covers all the areas mentioned under Section committee are independent. The
Committee and Non- | 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read with members possess sound
Executive Independent | Part C of Schedule Il to the Listing knowledge of accounts, finance,
Director. Regulations. audit and legal matters.
2. Mr. S.V. Ranganath, | ¢  Oversight of the Company’s financial | ¢ The Company Secretary &
Independent  Director reporting process and disclosure of its Compliance  Officer,
& Member. financial information; Sadananda Poojary, acts as the
e Reviewing, with the management, the Secretary to  the  Audit
(Chairman  of the quarterly, half-yearly, annual financial Committee to ensure
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Committee  till 6™ statements and auditor’s report before compliance  and  effective
December 2020) submission to the Board for approval; implementation of the

e Scrutinizing of inter-corporate loans and Corporate Governance

3. Dr Albert investments; practices.

Hieronimus,**Indepen | e Reviewing Management discussion and
dent  Director  and Analysis report; e The CFO have certified, in
Member. . terms of regulation 17(8) of the

4, Mrs. Malavika Hegde,
Whole-time Director,
Chief Executive
Officer and Member

Recommending the terms of appointment/
re-appointment, remuneration, replacement
or removal of Statutory auditors;
Recommending appointment
remuneration of Cost Auditors;
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function and internal control systems;
Approval of all related party transactions;
Evaluation of Risk Management System;
Appointment of Chief Executive Officer;
Reviewing the functioning of Whistle
Blower Mechanism.

and

Listing Regulations to the
Board that the financial
statements present a true and
fair view of the Company’s
affairs and are in compliance
with  existing  accounting
standards.

*Mr. K. R. Mohan, Independent Director of the company appointed as Chairman to the Audit Committee on 7t
December 2020, Prior to that Shri. S. V. Ranganath was a chairman to the Audit committee up till 6" December

2020.

**Dr., Albert Hieronimus resigned from the Committee on 30" June 2021.

Meeting and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met seven (7) times as on:

171 July, 2020,
3 August, 2020,
10" August, 2020
215 August 2020

NoogkrwdE

9™ February, 2021.

25t November 2020
7" December 2020 and

The details of member’s attendance at the Audit committee meeting during the year are given below:

Name of the Director No. of Meeting held No. of meeting attended
Mr. K. R. Mohan 1 1
Mr. S.V. Ranganath 7 7
Dr. Albert Hieronimus 7 7
Mrs. Malavika Hegde 7 7

2. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Composition and Category

Terms of reference

Other details

1. *Dr Albert Hieronimus,
Chairman and
Independent Director

2. Mr. S. V. Ranganath,
Non- Executive
Independent  Director
and Member

3. **Dr.
Deuvi,

Vasundhara
Non-Executive

In compliance with the requirements of
Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of |
the Listing Regulations, the terms of reference
with respect to the Committee are as follows:

[ ]

formulation of the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the board
of directors a policy relating to, the
remuneration of the directors, key |
managerial personnel and other

The Board in consensus with the
Committee carried out an Annual
evaluation of the performance of all
its Committees, their Chairperson and
each of Directors on the Board

through a self-evaluation survey
process.
The Independent Directors were

evaluated on various pointers like
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Independent  Director
and Member .
**Mrs. Malavika
Hegde, Whole-time o

Director & CEO

employees;

formulation of criteria for evaluation
of performance of independent
directors and the board of directors;
devising a policy on diversity of
board of directors;

identifying persons who are qualified
to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and
removal.

Whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation
of independent directors.
Recommend to the board, all
remuneration, in whatever form,
payable to senior management.

integrity, confidentiality,
commitment, participation,
knowledge, decision-making capacity
and inter-personal relationships with
other directors and management.

*Dr.Albert Hieronimus resigned from the Committee on 30" June 2021
**Mrs. Malavika Hegde, resigned from the Committee on 6" December 2020 and Dr. Vasundhara Devi
appointed to the Nomination and Remuneration committee on 7" December 2020.

Meeting and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met Two (2) times as on:

1. 17t July, 2020,
2. 7" December, 2020

The details of member’s attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration committee meeting during the year are

given below:

Name of the Director

No. of Meeting held

No. of meeting attended

Mr. S.V. Ranganath 2 2
Dr Albert Hieronimus 2 2
Mrs. Malavika Hegde 2 2

Dr. Vasundhara Devi

Remuneration of Directors

a) Details of Remuneration:

The details of remuneration and sitting fees paid or provided to each of the Directors during the year ended 31

March, 2021 are given below :

Rs. in Millions

Salary and Perquisites Others
Name of the Director | Fixed pay | Perquisites Retiral Commission Sitting Total
& Bonus Benefits fees
Mr. S.V. Ranganath | - - - - 1.80/- 1.80/-
Dr. Albert - - - - 1.80/- 1.80/-
Hieronimus
Dr. Vasundhara Devi | - - - - Nil Nil
Mr. K. R. Mohan - - - - 0.3 0.3
Mr. Giri Devanur - - - - Nil Nil
TOTAL - - - - 3.9 3.9
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b) Services Contracts, notice and severance fees:

As at March 31, 2021, the Board comprised of six members including one Whole-time Director and five Non-
Executive Independent Directors. However, Independent Directors are not subject to any notice period and
severance fees.

c) Pecuniary relations or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors:
There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of non-executive directors vis- a-vis the Company which
has potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

d) Compensation/Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors:
There were no payments made to the non-executive Directors of the Company.

e) Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors:
The criteria for making payment shall not be applicable for the Company.

5. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Composition and Category Terms of reference

1. Mr.  Albert  Hieronimus | Pursuant to Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing
Chairman* & Independent | Regulations, the Committee’s terms of reference are as under:
Director and Member
2. Mrs. Malavika ~ Hegde, | e Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity
Member &  Whole-time including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-

Director
Mr. S.V. Ranganath,
Independent  Director and
Member

receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

o Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.

e Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity
in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

o Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity
for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely
receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the company.

*Resigned from the Committee on 30" June 2021

Meeting and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met One (1) times as on:
1. 9" February 2021

The details of member’s attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship committee meeting during the year are
given below:

Name of the Director

No. of Meeting held

No. of meeting attended

Mr. Albert Hieronimus

1

1

Mr. S.V. Ranganath

1

1

Mrs. Malavika Hegde

1

1

Shareholders Complaint and Redressal:

The Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company is Link Intime India Private Limited, who
handles the investor’s grievances in coordination with the Compliance Officer of the Company. The Company
maintains continuous interaction with RTA and takes proactive steps and necessary actions in resolving
shareholder’s queries and complaints. The details of the shareholders complaints received and redressed during
the year are as follows:

36



COFFee
Day

Opening

Complaints received

Complaints solved

Pending

Nil 1

1

Nil

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

Name of the Member

Category and Position

Other details

1. Shri. S.V.

Ranganath
2. Mrs. Malavika
Hegde
3. Mr. K R
Mohan

Chairman &  Independent
Director
Whole-time Director &
Member
Independent Director &
member

The Company has formulated a policy of
CSR, which lays down the areas of focus,
composition of Committee.. It also contains
the CSR activities which can be carried out
by the Company. The said policy has been
hosted on the Company’s website and is
available on the link:
http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/CSR-Policy-

CDEL.pdf

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Name of the Member

Category and Position

Other details

1. Mr. S.V. Ranganth
2. Mrs. Malavika
Hegde

3. Mr. Nitin Bagmane
4. Mr. Ram Mohan

Chairman &  Independent
Director

Non-Executive Director and
Member

Executive Committee Member
Chief Financial Officer

For overall smooth functioning of the
Company, the Board has delegated some of
the day to day functions to the Committee.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location and time of the Shareholders meetings:
The last three financial year General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Date and

Year Time

Venue

Special Resolution, if any

27.09.2018

201718 | 11.00 AM

Café Coffee Day, Global Village,

RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
Mylasandra, Bangalore-560059

Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on
Private Placement Basis

so1g.19 | 14122019

Café Coffee Day, Global Village,
RVCE Post, Mysore road, Mylasandra,

Bangalore-560059

Re-appointment of Shri S. V. Ranganath
(DIN 00323799) as an Independent
Director of the Company

31.12.2020

2019-20 | 4500 p.m

through Video Conferencing (“VC”) /
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 3.

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Albert
Josef Hieronimus (DIN:
00063759) as Independent
Director of the Company.

2. Appointment of Mrs. C. H.

Vasundhara  Devi (DIN:

07789047) as Independent

Woman  Director of the

Company

Appointment of  Mr. Giri

Devanur (DIN: 00125603) as

Independent Director of the

Company.

4. Appointment of Mr. Mohan
Raghavendra Kondi (DIN:
01718628) as Independent
Director of the Company.

2020-21 09.10.2020

Postal Ballot (Trough remote e-voting) 5.

Appointment of M/s.
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At5P.M Venkatesh & Co., Chennai as
Statutory  Auditors of the
Company (Though not a
Special Resolution )

Role of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

The Company Secretary plays a key role of ensuring that the Board meetings (including committees thereof) are
conducted as per the rules and the regulations.

Other disclosures:

A. Means of Communication

i. Website:
The Company’s official website www.coffeeday.com contains the information pertaining to the Company that it
is in compliance with the Listing Regulations. A separate section for investors is available wherein the updated
information pertaining to quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results, official press releases and
presentations, if any, Shareholding pattern, etc. is available in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

ii. Financial Results:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are uploaded on NSE Electronic
Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre in accordance with the Listing Regulations.
The financial results are displayed on BSE and NSE websites and are also published in ‘The Business Line’
(English) and ‘Vijayvani’ (Kannada) newspapers within forty-eight (48) hours of Board approval thereof and
posted on the Company’s official website.

iii. Annual Report:

Annual Report containing, inter-alia, the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements, Board’s
Report, Auditor’s Report, Corporate Governance Report, -, Management Discussion and Analysis Report is
circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The same is made available on the Company’s official website
under the web link: http://www.coffeeday.com/stakeholders.html

iv. Exclusive Designated Email Address:
In terms of the Listing Regulations, the Company has designated a separate email Id for dealing with Investors’
queries and complaints viz., investors@coffeeday.com.

v. SCORES:
SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES) is an online facility, where investors can submit their
complaints for Redressal by the RTA/Company.

B. General Shareholders’ Information
i. 13" Annual General Meeting (AGM):

The 13" AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 22" September, 2021 at11:00 A.M. through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

Financial Year and Tentative Financial Calendar:
Financial Year — 01% April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022

Schedule for declaration of financial results during the financial year 2021-22 and next AGM is as under:

Results of Quarter ending 30" June, 2022 11" August 2022
Results of Quarter ending 30" September, 2022 12" November 2022
Results of Quarter ending 31% December, 2022 9" February 2022
Results of Quarter ending 31% March, 2022 24" May 2022
AGM for the year ending 31 March, 2022 30" September 2022
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ii. Book Closure Dates:

The Company has not transacted any business pursuant to Regulation 42(1) of the Listing Regulations, therefore
there is no such requirement for book closure for this financial year.

iii. Dividend Payment Date:

During the financial year 2020-21, no dividend has been declared by the Directors of the Company; hence this
clause is not applicable to the Company.

iv.  Listing on Stock Exchanges:

BSE Limited (BSE)

Add.: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai (MH) — 400001
Stock Code: 539436

National Stock Exchange of India (NSE)

Add.: Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block-G, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai (MH) — 400051

Stock Code: COFFEEDAY

v. International Securities Identification Number (ISIN):
ISIN of the Company is — INE335K01011

C. Market Price data during 2020-21

The monthly high/low closing prices and volume of shares of the Company from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021
are given below:

BSE NSE

Months High Price Low Price High Price Low Price
Apr-20 21.95 18.95 22.35 19.20
May-20 18.05 15.50 18.25 15.70
Jun-20 17.85 14.05 18.05 14.25
Jul-20 21.55 18.70 21.80 18.95
Aug-20 26.05 22.60 26.35 22.85
Sep_zo _* _* _* _*
Oct-20 -* -* -* -*
Nov-20 -* -* -* -*
Dec-20 -* -* -* -*
Jan-21 -* -* -* -*
Feb-21 -* -* -* -*
Mar-21 -* -* -* -*

*Since 3rd February 2020 till 31st August 2020 the shares of the company were traded on Monday to Monday
basis thereafter since 1st September 2020 till 25th April 2021 were suspended from trading. On 16th April 2021
Exchanges gave in-principle approval and the trading of shares of the Company has resumed on exchanges from
26th April 2021.

Stock Price Performance Index In Comparison with BSE Sensex/ NSE Nifty for the For the FY- 2020-21

During the financial Year 2019-20, Exchanges have suspended trading in the shares of Coffee Day Enterprises Ltd
from 3rd February 2020 for non-submission of financial results under Reg 33(3) of LODR for quarter ending on 30th
June, 2019 and 30th September 2019.

Since, The Company has now submitted, all financial results of the Company required under SEBI regulations.
Exchanges on 16™ April 2021, have given in-principle approval to Trading in shares of the company and the Trading
has resumed on BSE and NSE from 26" April 2020.



A. Share Transfer System

a) Physical Shares:

Share transfers in physical form are processed by the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) viz. Link
Intime India Private Limited, Mumbai. The share certificates are generally returned to the transferees within a period
of fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt of transfer documents, if technically found to be in order and complete in

all respects.

b) Demat Shares:

On receipt of the Demat request, shares are processed and the confirmation is given to depositories within fifteen
(15) days from the date of receipt if the documents are in order.
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The Equity shares of the Company are in Demat form except who holds 111 shares in form.

B. Distribution of the Shareholding:
The distribution of shareholding (category wise) as at March 31, 2021 is as under:

S. No. Category No. of shares % to Equity
1 Promoters & Promoter Group 32163416 15.2252
2 Foreign Portfolio Investors 7911764 3.7452
3 Mutual Funds, Banks, IFIs 14024652 6.6388
4 NRIs & Foreign Nationals 49494198 23.429
5 Corporate Bodies 47215274 22.3502
6 Indian Public & Others 60442415 28.6115

C. Distribution of shareholding by number of shares:
Total Shares

SL. Number Of % Of Total For The % Of Issued

No Shares Range Shareholders Shareholders Range Capital
1 1] to 500 58526 85.8757 6128832 2.9012
2 501 | to 1000 4734 6.9462 3653005 1.7292
3 1001 | to 2000 2150 3.1547 3324205 1.5736
4 2001 | to 3000 767 1.1254 1987975 0.9410
5 3001 | to 4000 364 0.5341 1302973 0.6168
6 4001 | to 5000 389 0.5708 1864260 0.8825
7 5001 | to 10000 553 0.8114 4281966 2.0269
8 10001 | to Above 669 0.9816 188708503 89.3287

Total 68152 100 211251719 100

D. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

111 (One hundred and eleven) shares constituting 0.00% of the paid up share capital of the Company were in
physical form as at 31 March, 2021. There are no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants and convertible

instruments.

E. Contact Information:

Investor Grievances Correspondence

Mr. Sadananda Poojary
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Tel.: 91 80 - 40012345
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E-mail id: investors@coffeeday.com

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai (MH) — 400083

Registered Office Address:

Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
23/2, Coffee Day Square

Vittal Mallya Road
Bangalore-560001

F. Compliance Requirements:

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authority
on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three (3) years except

1.

Non Compliance of Regulation 33(3) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The company could not file its financial statements as per Reg 33(3) of Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ending on
30™ June, 2019 and 30" September 2019 in the mandated period of time hence shares of our Company
were suspended for the period of six months from 3™ February 2020 on NSE and BSE. Now the shares
are suspended from Exchanges

However, The company as on date of this report complied with all the requirement with NSE & BSE
and the suspense of trading was invoked by the stock exchanges

Non appointment of Independent Woman Director

The Company during the FY 2019-20 had appointed Mrs. Sulakshana Raghavan as woman
Independent Director to the Company. However, post the demise of Mr. V.G.Siddhartha, she resigned
from her post of woman Independent Director of the Company. The Company was looking for right
candidate for that place, hence, it took a time and during the FY 2020-21, The Company appointed Dr.
Vasundhara Devi, as Independent Woman Director in its 12" Annual General Meeting held on 31%
December 2020.

Non-Compliance with respect to Number of Directors on the Board.

At the beginning of the financial Year 2019-20 the Company had six directors comprising of optimal
mixture of Executive and Non-Executive Director, Independent Directors (including woman
independent director). However, post the demise Mr. V.G.Siddhartha, Mr.Sanjay Nayar (Non-
executive Director) and Mrs. Sulakshana Raghavan (Woman Independent Director) resigned from their
respective posts.

The Company was looking for right candidates for those positions; hence, it took time for the Company
to appoint suitable candidates.

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company appointed three Independent Directors in its 12th
Annual General Meeting held on 31st December 2020. Namely, Dr. Vasundhara Devi, Mr. K.R.
Mohan and Mr. Giri Devanur.
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The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations read with
Section 149 of the Act.

G. Code of Conduct:

The Company has laid down a “Code of Business conduct and Ethics” for the Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. The same code has been made available on the Company’s official website and can be accessed at
the web link: https://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/Code_of Conduct_for_Prevention_of Insider_Trading.pdf

All the Board members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021. A declaration duly signed by Mr. S.V.Ranganath,
Chairman, forms part of this report.

H. Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil mechanism:

In line with Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177(9) of the Act, Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle
blower policy has been formulated for Directors and Employees (including their representative bodies) to
communicate and report genuine concerns about the unethical behaviour or practices, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of Company’s Code of conduct etc. The said policy provides adequate safeguard against the
victimization of Directors/ Employees who avail such mechanism and it also provides direct access to the
Chairman of Audit Committee in exceptional cases. Further it has been also affirmed that no personnel has been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

During the year under Report, Mr. S.V.Ranganth, resigned from the Chairmanship of the Audit Committee and
Mr. K.R.Mohan took over the charge of Chairmanship of Audit Committee. Hence, the Whistle Blower Policy
was amended accordingly, Contact details of Chairman of Audit committee as under:

Name : K.R.Mohan

43 New No.22, 1st Floor 16th Cross,
8th Main, Malleswaram

Bangalore Karnataka 560055

Cell No.: 9844152676

Email id:kr_mohan@hotmail.com

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company’s official website and may be accessed through web
link: https://coffeeday.com/PDF/WhistleBlower.pdf

I. Related Party Contracts or Arrangements:

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2020-21 were on an arm’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business and is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
the Listing Regulations.

The Company, post the unfortunate demise of Chairman Shri V G Siddhartha, appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar
Malhotra Ex-DIG CBI assisted by M/s. Agastya Legal LLP, New Delhi consisting of Legal Professional’s head
by Senior Partner Dr. M. R. Venkatesh to scrutinize the books of accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Investigators submitted their investigation report on 24" July 2020 to the Company, in the report;
investigators have reported that, Rs 3,535 Crores is due from Mysore Amalgamated Coffee Estates Limited
(MACEL) to the seven subsidiaries of the company. CDEL on the receipt of Investigation Report has appointed
Justice. K.L. Manjunath, retired Judge of Hon. High Court of Karnataka to suggest and oversee actions for
recovery of the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated matters.

The Management of the seven subsidiaries have decided to take a decision on recoverability of Rs. 3,535 Crores
which is due from MACEL to the seven subsidiaries of the Company after the receipt of report from Justice
K.L.Manjunath.

The Audit Committee in their meeting held on 17" July, 2020 has placed all the related parties’ transactions of
the company for prior approval and in the same meeting; omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained
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for the transactions which are repetitive in nature or when the need for them cannot be foreseen in advance.
Further, disclosures are made to the Committee on a quarterly basis. None of the transactions entered into with
related parties’ falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act and hence there is no such requirement to
enclose ‘Form AOC-2’ pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014.

The Company has adopted a Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions which has been approved by the
Board of Directors on the recommendations of the Audit Committee and may be viewed on the Company’s
official website.

J. Material Subsidiary:

The Company has formulated a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries pursuant to the provisions of the
Listing Agreement. The said policy is available at the Company’s official website.

The Company has 45 subsidiaries of which one subsidiary viz. Coffee Day Global Limited is a ‘material’
subsidiary. With regards to Sical Logistics Ltd, it is now under the National Company Law Tribunal and
Insolvency Professional has been appointed, hence, it is no more considered as material Subsidiary of the
Company. The report on the performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiary Companies is
presented in the Boards’ report. The financial statements of the subsidiaries will be made available on the
website of the Company, post approval by the members.

K. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit under Regulation 76 of SEBI
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with the
National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(“CDSL”) and the total issued and listed equity share capital.

The audit report confirms that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in
physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

L. Preservation of Documents:

As per Regulation 9 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has framed a policy for preservation of documents
in the name of ‘Archival Policy’. The policy plays an important role in completing the Information Management
Life Cycle of the Company. It aims at ensuring creation and management of reliable and authentic archives for
accountability purposes. The said policy is made available on the Company’s official website and can be
accessed through a web link at: https://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/Archival%20Policy.pdf

M. Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirement:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations relating Corporate
Governance.

The Company has also adopted the following discretionary requirements under Regulation 27(1) of the Listing
Regulations read along with Part E of Schedule II thereto:

e Unmodified opinion in Audit Report: The Statutory Auditors of the Company has not raised any
qualifications/ modified opinion on the Financial Statements for the year 2018-19.

e Modified opinion in Audit Report: The Statutory Auditors of the Company has raised some disclaimer
/qualifications/ modified opinion on the Financial Statements for the year 2019-20 and 2020-21.

e Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors, ABS & Co., reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Company.
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N. Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a
part is given below:

Amount (Rs. in Crore)

Payment to Statutory Auditors FY 2020-21
Audit Fees 0.65

O. Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Number of complaints filed during the financial year 2020-21 - Nil
Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year 2020-21 - Nil
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year-2020-21 - Nil
P. Insider Trading Regulations

The Company has adopted the Coffee Day Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Fair
Disclosure Practices. This Code of Conduct is applicable to all Directors and such designated persons who are
expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company.

Q. Certificate on Corporate Governance

All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not debarred or disqualified
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies. Mr. Harshavardhan R. Boratti, Practicing
Company Secretary, has submitted a certificate to this effect.

A compliance certificate from Mr. Harshavardhan R. Boratti, Practicing Company Secretary pursuant to the
requirements of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance is attached.

Place: Bangalore For Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Date 30" June, 2021
Sd/- Sd/-
S.V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim-Chairman & Whole-time Director
Independent Director DIN: 00136524

DIN: 00323799
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ANNEXURE-III

DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A) Conservation Of Energy:

Your company is committed to adopt energy efficient practices across all its business units, offices, factories
and outlets to reduce the consumption of power by analyzing power factor, maximum demand, working hours,
load factor, specific energy consumption and monthly consumption.

Your Company has taken various initiatives for conservation of energy and reducing its environmental impact
by conducting energy audits and introducing innovative ways of saving power, few of them are listed below:

e Installing advanced energy saving gadgets like capacitor banks, indigenized components like thermo
controllers for the ovens and usage of LED lighting etc.

e Introducing high end online energy monitoring system in majority of CCD outlets, With Internet of
Things (IoT) it is possible to remotely monitor and manage energy usage and take timely actions to
stop inefficiencies.

e In order to continually reduce the Company’s environmental footprint, green attributes are integrated in
all new outlets and are also being incorporated into existing outlets, during retrofits, by using LED
lighting and usage of Bureau of Energy Efficiency’s (BEE) star rating equipments.

e Technological up-gradation by installing higher efficiency state-of-the-art machineries in the coffee
roasting unit.

The above mentioned initiatives have reduced the energy consumption substantially compared to the previous
fiscal.

B) Technology And Innovation:
Coffee Day has been constantly evolving with innovative ideas/Improvements in the areas of Coffee brewing,

curing, roasting, testing etc. and to align with the taste of the consumers, we have been innovating latest vending
machines to cater the needs of the corporate customers.

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo:

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Foreign Exchange earned Nil Nil

Outgo of Foreign Exchange Rs.1.8 Million Rs.1.8 Million
Place: Bangalore For Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Date: 30" June 2021

Sd/- Sd/-
S.V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim-Chairman & Whole-time Director
Independent Director DIN: 00136524

DIN: 00323799
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ANNEXURE IV

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
23/2, Coffee Day Square,

Vittal Mallya Road,

Bengaluru — 560001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called ‘the
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31* March, 2021 (‘Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2021 according to
the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. There were no Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings during the period under review;

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
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Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :-

a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulation 2014 (Not applicable to the company during the Audit
period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the company during the
Audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period);
and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period);
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) Other law specifically applicable to the company

a.
b.

C.

Water (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act, 1974

Air (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act, 1981

Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling and Trans boundary Movement)
Rules, 2008

Karnataka Excise Act, 1965

Food Safety and Standards Authority of India Act, 2006

The Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i).  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i).  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange &

Bombay Stock Exchange.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent mentioned
below:

1. Whereas in terms of the Regulation 30 (6) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall first disclose to stock
exchange(s) of all events, as specified in Part A of Schedule 111, or information as soon
as reasonably possible and not later than twenty four hours from the occurrence of
event or information. The company could not comply the same in the events:

a. Sale of shares of Way2wealth Securities Private Limited (Subsidiary Company)
to Shriram Group.
b. Disclosure of the resignation of Auditors within prescribed time.

2. Whereas in terms of the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding delayed submission of financial result for
the quarter ended 30.06.2020 and the quarter ended 31.09.2020. Company has also
received notices of fine in this regard from the Stock Exchanges. Since the company
continued to be in non-compliance, the stock exchanges had suspended the trading and
have also issued Show cause notice for delisting of shares.

3. The board of directors of the top 2000 listed entities (with effect from April 1, 2020)
shall comprise of ‘not less than six directors’. The company could not comply the same
for Quarter ended 30.06.2020 & 30.09.2020.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance

with the provisions of the Act subject to the above remarks/observations.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

The company has duly constituted the CSR Committee, however the committee has not ‘met’ during

the year as the company was not mandated for ‘CSR spending’ during the period under review.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured

and recorded as part of the minutes.
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I further report that there are systems and processes needs to be strengthened in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the following events/actions occurred during the audit period, having bearing

on the companies affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.,:

(i).  The company is yet to take the decision based on the directions of Honble Justice
Sri. K.L Manjunath w.r.t recoverability of outstanding amount of Rs.3,535 Crores
from MACEL to subsidiaries.

(i)).  The company has received notice from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka under section
206 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iti).  The Company has received multiple queries from SEBI regarding sale of shares of
Mindtree Limited.

(iv).  SEBI has issued Summons with respect to the matter of financial statements submitted by
the company to the exchanges for productions of Documents before investigating
Authority to Key-Managerial Personnel (KMP’s) of the company.

(v).  Lenders of the Material Subsidiary “Coffee Day Global Limited” have filed an application
before the NCLT Bengaluru under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016.

for HRB & Co.,

Company Secretaries
Firm’s registration Number: S2014KR261500

Sd/-

CS Harshavardhan R Boratti

Proprietor

C.P.No.:

11444

Membership No. FCS 9490

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30.06.2021
UDIN: F009490C000558159

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms

an integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure-A

The Members

Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
23/2, Coffee Day Square,

Vittal Mallya Road,

Bengaluru — 560001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company and relied upon the Reports given by statutory auditors or other
designated professionals.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the company.

for HRB & Co.,
Company Secretaries
Firm’s registration Number: S2014KR261500

Sd/-

CS Harshavardhan R Boratti

Proprietor

C.P.No.: 11444
Membership No. FCS-9490

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30.06.2021
UDIN: FO09490C000558159
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ANNEXURE-V

FORM NO. MGT -9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) | CIN L55101KA2008PLC046866
i) | Registration Date 20™ June, 2008
iii) | Name of the Company Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

iv) | Category/Sub-Category of the company Company having Share Capital

Address of the Registered office and | No. 23/2, Coffeeday Square Vittal Mallya Road Bangalore 560001

v) contact details Karnataka
vi) | Whether listed company Yes / No Yes
. Link Intime India Private Limited
vii) Name, Address and contact details of C-101, Ist Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any (West) Mumbai City 400083 Maharashtra.

IT PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company:

SL Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Products/ | % to total turnover of the Company
No. products / services Service

1 Income from Hospitality Services 55101 24.50%

2 Income from Products 64200 75.50%

11I. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Holding/ % of .
SLN |Dame and Address of (he CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ | shares | aPPlicable
pany Associate held
1 Coffee Day Global Limited U85110KA1993PLCO15001 | Subsidiary 76.93% 2(87)(ii)
2 ﬁﬁig‘(ﬁ“da‘y International NA Subsidiary | 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
3 Classic Coffee Curing Works NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
4 | Coffeelab Limited U85110KA1996PLC019932 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Coffee Day Gastronomie Und o N ..
Kaffeehandles GmbH# NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
6 | Coffee Day C Z a.s# NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
Coffee Day Schaerer . N
7 Technologies Private Limited U29248KA2015FTC084523 | Joint Venture | 49% 2(6)
8 E:’nﬁfliee dD ay Consultancy Private | 15549991 A2019PTC123085 | Joint Venture | 51% 2(6)
9 | Coffee Day Econ Private Limited | US2609KA2019PTC123086 | Joint Venture | 99.99% 2(6)
10 | Tanglin Developments Limited U85110KA1995PLC019495 | Subsidiary 87.12% 2(87)(ii)
11 | Coffeeday Hotels and Resorts U55101KA2004PTC034591 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)ii)
Private Limited
12 | Coffee Day Trading Limited U74140KA2000PLC026366 | Subsidiary 88.77% 2(87)(ii)
13 | Way2Wealth Securities Private U72200KA2000PTC027020 | Subsidiary 85.33% 2(87)(ii)
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Limited*

Coffee Day Kabini Resorts

14 | o0 U55101KA2018PLC117722 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Limited
15 | Giri Vidhyuth (India) Limited U40101KA2001PLC029866 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(i)
Tanglin Retail Reality - o ..
16 | Developments Private Limited | U70102KA2007PTC044421 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(i)
17 | Sical Logistics Limited** L51909TN1955PLC002431 | Subsidiary 36.10% 2(87)(ii)
18 | Develecto Mining Limited** U10200TN2018PLC121501 | Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)(ii)
19 | PAT Chems Private Limited** 2241 1OMHI989PTC05294 Subsidiary 84.00% 2(87)(ii)
20 | Sical Mining Limited** U10300TN2016PLC112461 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
21 ili‘;;lég’f*ore Terminal U13100TN2006PLCO61022 | Subsidiary | 63.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Sical Iron Ore Terminal .y o ..
22 | (Mangalore) Limited** U63020TN2009PLCO73147 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(i)
23 | Sical Saumya Mining Limited** | U74900TN2015PLC101236 | Subsidiary 65.00% 2(87)(ii)
24 | Sical Washeries Limited** U10100TN2019PLC128380 | Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)(ii)
25 | Sical Infra Assets Limited** U45203TN2007PLC063432 | Subsidiary | 53.60% | 2(87)(ii)
26 | Sical Bangalore Logistics Park | \;040001N2016PLC110673 | Subsidiar 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Limited** y
Sical Multimodal and Rail . o ..
27 | Transport Limited** U60232TN2007PLC063378 | Subsidiary 100.00% | 2(87)(i)
28 ]Ezief Offshore Logistics Pte 1 Subsidiary | 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
g9 | Wilderness Resorts Private US55101KA2005PTC035580 | Subsidiar 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Limited Y
30 | Karnataka Wildlife Resorts U92199KA2001PTC028981 | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 2(87)i)
Private Limited
31 | Magnasoft Consulting India U74140KA2000PTC026735 | Subsidiary | 77.88% | 2(87)(ii)
Private Limited
32 Magnasoft Europe Ltd NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
33 Magnasoft Spatial Services Inc NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
34 | Way2Wealth Capital Private U65921KA1995PTCO18960 | Subsidiary | 99.99% | 2(87)ii)
Limited
35 | Way2Wealth Enterprises Private | ;05600 A p>017pTC106315 | Subsidiar 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)
Limited y
36 | Wav2Wealth Insurance Brokers | ;00101 A2003pTC032003 | Subsidiary | 99.99% | 2(87)(i)
Private Limited*
37 Calculus Traders LLP AAM-6699 Subsidiary 99.99% 2(87)(ii)
33 | Way2Wealth Brokers Private U67120KA2000PTC027628 | Subsidiar 99.99% | 2(87)(ii)
Limited* Y
Way2Wealth Commodities . N ..
39 | proto Limited® US1229KA2006PTC039880 | Subsidiary | 99.99% | 2(87)(ii)
40 iiﬁiltgggxpress Private g74120MH201 1PTC22367 Subsidiary 60.00% 2(87)()
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41 Eﬁ;&‘f}fly Chain Solutions UG63000TN2012PLCO87754 | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)

42 | Sical Connect Limited** U74900TN2009PLCO71762 | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 2(87)(ii)

43 | Barefoot Resorts and Leisure US5101TN1998PTC040221 | Associate 27.69% | 2(6)
India Private Limited

44 | PSA Sical Terminals Limited** | U74999TN1998PLC040682 | Joint Venture | 37.50% | 2(6)

45 iﬁilt:;r:a Rail Terminal Private | ;3031 1N2000pTC045198 | Joint Venture | 50.00% | 2(6)

* Till November 19, 2020
** Till March 9, 2021

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF
TOTAL EQUITY)

i) Category-wise Share Holding:

Catego

ry
Code

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%
Change
during
the year

Demat

Phys
ical

Total

% of
total
shares

Demat

Physic
al

Total

% of
total
shares

A

Promoter and
Promoter
Group

0]

Indian

(a)

Individuals/
Hindu
Undivided
Family

7,77,37,206

7,77,37,206

36.79%

2,38,29,186

2,38,29,186

11.28% | -1.54%

(b)

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)

(©)

Bodies
Corporate

75,25,030

75,25,030

3.56%

8334230

8334230

3.94% | .38%

(d)

Financial
Institutions/
Banks

(e)

Any Other

(specify)

Sub-Total
A)a@)

3,46,17,216

3,46,17,216

16.38%

3,21,63,416

3,21,63,416

2

Foreign

(a)

Individuals
(Non-Resident
Individuals/
Foreign
Individuals)

(b)

Bodies
Corporate

(©)

Institutions

(d)

Qualified

Foreign
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Investor

(e)

Any Other

(specify)

Sub-Total
(A)(2)

Total
Shareholding
of

Promoter and
Promoter
Group

(A)=
(A)MHA)2)

3,46,17,216

3,46,17,216

16.38%

3,21,63,416

3,21,63,416

15.22% +1.16%

(B)

Public
shareholding

1)

Institutions

(a)

Mutual
Funds/UTI

48,76,540

48,76,540

2.31%

48,76,540

48,76,540

231% | -

(b)

Financial
Institutions/
Banks

63,82,182

63,82,182

3.02%

63,80,000

63,80,000

0.0010

3.02% o

(c)

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)

(d)

Venture
Capital Funds

(e)

Insurance
Companies

®

Foreign
Institutional
Investors

(2

Foreign
portfolio
Investors

96,85,395

96,85,395

4.58%

79,11,764

79,11,764

3.74% | -0.83%

(h)

Foreign
Venture
Capital
Investors

(M)

Qualified
Foreign
Investor

©)

Any Other

(specify)

Sub-Total
B)@)

2,09,44,117

2,09,44,117

9.91%

1,91,68,304

1,91,68,304

9.07% | -0.84%

2

Non-
institutions

(a)

Bodies
Corporate

9,87,30,879

9,87,30,879

46.73%

9,26,90,786

9,26,90,786

43.88% | -2.85%

(b)

Individuals -

(1) Individual
shareholder
s holding
nominal
share
capital up
to Rs. 1

1,93,02,828

82

1,93,02,910

9.13

2,05,70,706

111

2,05,70,81
7

9.73% 0.60%
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lakh.

(i) Individual
shareholder
s holding
nominal
share
capital  in
excess  of
Rs. 1 lakh.

2,83,84,606

2,83,84,606

13.43%

3,51,06,543

3,51,06,543

16.61%

3.18%

(©)

Qualified
Foreign
Investor

(d)

Any Other

(specify)

NRIs/OCBs

22,34,625

22,34,625

1.06

22,79,862

22,79,862

1.08%

0.02%

Clearing
Member

1,31,145

1,31,145

0.06%

1,057

1,057

0.0005%

-0.06%

Directors &
Relatives

Hindu
Undivided
Families

14,10,504

14,10,504

0.67%

17,37,561

17,37,567

0.82%

0.15%

NBFC’s
registered with
RBI

47,793

47,793

0.02%

27,68,112

27,68,112

1.31%

1.28%

Trusts

17,670

17,670

0.01%

10,001

10,001

0.0047%

0.0037
%

Foreign
Nationals

200

200

0.00%

200

200

0.0001

0.0000

Trust
Employees

54,30,054

54,30,054

2.57%

47,55,054

47,55,054

225%

-0.32%

Sub-Total
B)(2)

15,56,90,304

82

15,56,90,38
6

73.70%

15,99,19,88
2

117

15,99,19,99
9

75.70%

2.00%

Total Public
Shareholding
B)=
B)(D)+(B)(2)

17,66,34,421

82

17,66,34,50
3

83.61%

17,90,88,18
6

117

17,90,88,30
3

84.77%

1.16%

TOTAL
(A)Y+(B)

21,12,51,637

82

21,12,51,71
9

100%

21,12,51,60
2

117

21,12,51,71
9

100%

0.0000

©

Shares held by
Custodians
and against
which
Depository
Receipts have
been issued

Promoter and
Promoter
Group

Public

GRAND
TOTAL
(A)yHB)HC)

21,12,51,637

82

21,12,51,71
9

100%

21,12,51,60
2

117

21,12,51,71
9

100%

0.0000
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ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the
of the year year
% of % of % of )
Shareholder’s total Shares % of | Shares % change-m
S Name Share Pledged total Pledged | shareholding
N No. of s of / No. of Shares |/ during the
Shares the encumb | Shares of the | encumb | year
compa ered to compa | ered to
ny total ny total
shares shares
2.94%
1 | Late. VG 3’69’79’78 :/2'77 60.38% 2’37"13’78 11.23% -1.55%
Siddhartha 0
2 g;;d Z’Iala“ka 1,12,402 | 0.05% | 55.16% | 1,15,402 | 0.055% | 0.03% 0.0014%
Devadarshini
3 }lflef:hnologies 23,28,440 | 1.10% 100% 23,28,440 1.10% 100% 0
Private Limited
Coffee Day
4 | Consolidations | 51,96,558 | 2.46% | 99.98% | 56,79,758 | 2.69% | 2.20% 0.23%
Private Limited
Gonibedu Coffee
5 | Estates Private - - - - - -
Limited
6 Is,;fé‘:t:i‘ﬁgzs 32 0.00% | 0.00% | 326,032 | 0.15% 0 0.15%
3,46,17,21 | 16.38 6.27% 3,21,63,41 | 15.23% | 6.27% -1.16%
Total 6 % 6

III) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’’PROMOTERS GROUP SHAREHOLDING (PLEASE SPECIFY, IF
THERE IS NO CHANGE):

year

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year gllérr;z;a;tlve Sharcholding during
SN . % of total % of total
N.ame. Late.V G No. of shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
Siddhartha
company company
At the beginning of the 2,69,79,784 12.77%
year
Date wise Increase / 24 Apr 2020 2,37,13,784 11.25%
Decrease in Promoters Invocation of Pledge (32,66,000)
Shareholding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase / 06 Hov 2000 | (30,17,448) | 2,06,96,336 9.80%
decrease (e.g. allotment Invocation of Pledge
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.): 27 Nov 2020
Release of Pledge 30.17.448 | 5 37 13,784 11.23%
At the end of the year 2,37,13,784 11.23% 2,37,13,784 11.23%
SN Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during

the year
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Name: Mrs. Malavika
Hegde

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of the
year

1,12,402

0.05%

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):

08 May 2020
Release of pledge

3,000

1,15,402

1.43%

At the end of the year

1,15,402

1.43%

1,15,402

1.43%

Particulars

Shareholding at the begin
year

ning of the

Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

SN Name: Coffee Day % of total % of total
Consolidations Private No. of shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
Limited company company
At the beginning of the 51,96,558 2.46%
year
Date wise Increase /

Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
year spec1fy.1ng the 08 May 2020 4.83.200 56.79.758 2.69%
reasons for increase / Release of Pledge
decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):
At the end of the year 56,79,758 2.69% 56,79,758 2.69%
Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during
year the year
o, 0,
SN Name: Gonibedu Coffee 70 of total o of total
. . No. of shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
Estates Private Limited
company company
At the beginning of the NIL NIL NIL NIL
year
Change during the year - - - -
At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during
year the year

SN Name: Devadarshini % of total % of total
Info Technologies No. of shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
Private Limited company company
At the beginning of the 23,28,440 L10% - -
year
Change during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 23,28,440 1.10% 23,28,440 1.10%
Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during
SN year the year

Name: Sivan Securities

No. of shares

| % of total

No. of shares |

% of total
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Private Limited

company

shares of the

shares of the
company

At the beginning of the
year

32

0.00%

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):

08 May 2020
Release of pledge

3,26,000

3,26,032

0.15%

At the end of the year

3,26,032

0.15%

3,26,032

0.15%

IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,

PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

Sl Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. teu the year the year
0, 0,
No. of Shares % of total share No. of Shares % of total share
of the company of the company
NLS Mauritius LLC

1 At the beginning of the year 2,24,12,992 10.61%

Change during the year 2,24,12,992 10.61%
At the end of the year 2,24,12,992 10.61%

IDBI Trusteeship Services

Limited

2 At the beginning of the year 2,14,60,416 10.15% - -
Change during the year - - 2,14,60,416 10.15%
At the end of the year 2,14,60,416 10.15% 2,14,60,416 10.15%
KKR Mauritius PE
Investments II Ltd.

3 At the beginning of the year 1,28,26,912 6.07%

Change during the year 1,28,26,912 6.07%
At the end of the year 1,28,26,912 6.07% 1,28,26,912 6.07%
Marina West (Singapore)

Pte. Ltd

4 At the beginning of the year 97,72,853 4.62%

Change during the year - - 97,72,853 4.62%
At the end of the year 97,72,853 4.62%

Indusind Bank Limited

At the beginning of the year 73,53,048 3.48%

5 ?gdA;)rTg“ogsofer 270 4.76% 73,53318 3.48%
At the end of the year 73,53,318 3.48% 73,53,318 3.48%
Aditya Birla Finance Limited
At the beginning of the year 98,73,688 4.67%

¢ gjg;gﬁ‘;sofer (1,00,000) -0.05% 97,73,688 4.62%
%fsgezr;gzs(f)er (2,00,000) -0.09% 95,73,688 4.53%
Less: Transfer (1,00,000) -0. 05% 94,73,688 4.48%
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18 Dec 2020
gsesgégzgsofer (6,75,000) -0.32% 87,98,688 4.16%
gﬁ;?;g;ger (700000) 0.21% 80,98,688 3.83%
ggsjsén%gslfer (8,00,000) -0.38% 72,98,688 3.45%
At the end of the year 72,98,688 3.45%
RBL Bank Limited
- At the beginning of the year 63,80,000 3.02%
Changes during the year - - 63,80,000 3.02%
At the end of the year 63,80,000 3.02%
Government Pension Fund
Global
At the beginning of the year 62,67,084 2.97% - -
8 Changes during the year - - 62,67,084 2.97%
At the end of the year 62,67,084 2.97%
Nandan M Nilekani
9 At the beginning of the year 56,91,128 2.68%
Change during the year - - 56,91,128 2.68%
At the end of the year 56,91,128 2.68%
Kammargodu
Ramchandregowda Sudhir
10 | At the beginning of the year 52,50,000 -
Change during the year - - 52,50,000 2.57%
At the end of the year 52,50,000 2.57%
Edelweiss Asset
Reconstruction Company
Limited
At the beginning of the year 54,30,054 2.57%
ggsjsa;Tng‘;ffer (3,00,000) 0.14% 51,30,054 2.43%
Less : Transfer o 51,05,054 o
o 29 Jan 2021 (25,000) 0.01% 2.42%
Less : Transfer (2,25,000) 0.11% 48,80,054 2.31%
19 Feb 2021 S
Less : Transfer
19 Mar 2021 (25,000) 0.01 48,55,054 2.30%
. o,
51651\54;;“0‘;5{“ (1,00,000) 0.05 47,55,054 2:25%
At the end of the year 47,55,054 2.25%

V) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shareholding of each
Director and each Key
Managerial Personnel

year

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
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Mrs Mrs. Malavika
Hegde.

company

company

At the beginning of the
year

1,12,402

0.05%

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):

08 May 2020
Release of pledge

3,000

1,15,402

1.43%

At the end of the year

1,15,402

1.43%

1,15,402

1.43%

Shareholding a

t the beginning

Cumulative

S N | Shareholding of each Director and Shareholding during the
. of the year
each Key Managerial Personnel year
% of total No. of % of total
2. | Mr. S V Ranganath No. of shares shares of the sha.res shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for NA NA NA NA
increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
S N | Shareholding of each Director and Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year
% of total No. of % of total
3. Mr. Alber Hieronimus No. of shares shares of the sha‘res shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for NA NA NA NA
increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
S N | Shareholding of each Director and Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year
% of total No. of % of total
4. Dr. Vasundhara Devi No. of shares shares of the sha‘res shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for NA NA NA NA

increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
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| At the end of the year

0 |

S N | Shareholding Of Each Director Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
And Each Key Managerial of the year during the year
Personnel % of total No. of % of total

5. No. of shares shares of the h ’ shares of the
Mr. K.R. Mohan company shares company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for NA NA NA NA
increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

S N | Shareholding of each Director and Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding

each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year
% of total No. of % of total

6. Dr. Giri Devanur No. of shares shares of the sha‘res shares of the

company company

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

Date wise Increase / Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for NA NA NA NA

increase /

decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /

bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

SN | Shareholding of each Director and Shareholding at the beginning Cumulat.ive Shareholding

each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year
% of total No. of % of total

7. | Mr.R. Ram Mohan No. of shares shares of the shares shares of the

company company

At the beginning of the year 586 0.00%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during the

year specifying the reasons for ) ) 536 0.00%

increase /

decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /

bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 586 0.00% 586 0.00%

S N | Shareholding of each Director and | Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year

% of total No. of % of total
8. | Mr. Sadananda Poojary No. of shares shares of the sha‘res shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 2,070 0.00%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for ) ) 2,070 )
increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 2,070 0.00% 2,070 0.00%
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V. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
(Amount in Crs)

Se(;ulc‘cled dljli)ans Unsecured Deposits Total
xeu l g Loans P Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount 512.84 - - 512.84
ii) Interest due but not paid -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 512.84 - - 512.84
Change in Indebtedness during

the financial year

* Addition 49.06 - - 49.06
* *Reduction - - - -
Net Change 49.06 - - 49.06
Indebtedness at the end of the )
financial year

1) Principal Amount 561.90 - - 561.90
it) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 561.90 - - 561.90

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:
Name of the Director
Mrs. Malavika Hegde Total
(Whole —time Director since 31* December 2020)

SI Particulars of
No Remuneration

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in -
Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act,
1961




(b) Value of
perquisites under
Section 17(2)
Income Tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under
Section 17(3)
Income Tax Act,
1961

2 Stock Options

3 Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

5 - Others, specify....

NIL

NIL

Total (A)

NIL

NIL

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
1. Independent Directors

S.
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Mr. S. V.
Ranganath

Mrs.
Vasundhara
Devi

Mr. Albert
Hieronimus

Mr.
K.R.Mohan

Mr. Giri
Devanur

Fee for
attending Board
/ committee 18
Meetings

18 Nil

Nil 41Lakhs

Commission Nil

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil Nil

Others, please

specify Nil

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil Nil

Total (B)(1) 18

18 Nil

Nil 41Lakhs

2. Non-Executive Directors:

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Mrs. Malavika Hegde*

Total Amount

Meetings

Fee for attending Board/ committee

Nil

Nil

Commission

Nil

Nil

Others, please specify

Nil

Nil

Total (B)(2)

Nil

Nil

Total (B)=(B) (1) + (B)(2)

Nil

Nil

* Mrs. Malavika Hegde, took as charge as CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company on 31°' December 2020
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B. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Amt in Crs)
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Polt)/l'l;rsa([iél(l)?rllld:n Mr. R. Ram Total Amount
No Jary PANY | Mohan [CFO]
Secretary]|
Gross Salary 1.05 9.34 10.39
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
1 | in Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 0 0 0
1961
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 0 0 0
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 0 0 0
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Options NIL NIL NIL
3 | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4 | Commission
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL
- others specify NIL NIL NIL
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
6 | Total 1.05 9.34 10.39
VII) PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Section of ' Detalls.of Penalty / Authority [RD App.eal
the Brief Punishment / made, if any
Type . o . /NCLT/ .
Companie | Description compounding fees (give
. COURT] .
s Act imposed details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
of Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bangalore S. V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde

Date: 30th June 2021

Interim Chairman

&Independent Director

DIN- 00323799

Whole-time Director
DIN - 00136524
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COFFee
DaYy-
ANNEXURE-VI
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Directors present the “Business Responsibility Report” (BRR) of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021, Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forming part of the annual report.

The reporting framework is based on the ‘National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic
Responsibilities of Business (NVGs)’ released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, in July 2011

which contains 9 principles and Core Elements for each of the nine Principles.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
S.NO | PARTICULARS COMPANY INFORMATION
1. Corporate Identification Number L55101KA2008PLC046866
2. Name of the Company Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (CDEL)
3. Registered Office & Corporate Office 23/2, Coffee Day Square, Vittal Mallya Road,
Bangalore- 560001
4. Website www.coffeeday.com
5. E-Mail ID investors@coffeedaygroup.com
6. Financial Year reported Year ended on March 31, 2021
(FY 2020-21)
7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial Trading of Coffee - 47211
activity code-wise) Dividend Income - 64200
Hospitality Services - 55101
8. List three key products/services that the Company | 1. Trading of Coffee
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) 2. Logistics
3. Hospitality Services
9. Total number of locations where business activity is | The Company as standalone and primarily through
undertaken by the Company its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
companies (together referred to as “the Group”, as
listed in this annual report) are engaged in business
in multiple sectors, operating at various locations
across India and other countries.
10. Markets served by the Company Products and services have national as well as
international presence.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

S.NO | PARTICULARS COMPANY INFORMATION
1. Paid up Capital as on 31.3.2021 211,251,719 Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 2,112,517,190
2. Turnover: Rs 853 Crore*
Net (*on consolidated basis)
3. Profit after Tax Rs. (652)Crore*
(*on consolidated basis)
4. Total Spending on Corporate The company on a standalone basis need not spend for CSR activities

Social Responsibility

a) InRs. NA
b) Asa percentage of Profit | NA
after Tax

due to huge loss incurred by the Company. During the year and the
average loss for the last 3 years is Rs. (33.78) Crores.
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5. List the activities, in which expenditure in 4 above, has been incurred: NA

SECTION C: BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY (BR) INFORMATION

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies?

Yes. The List of Subsidiaries is given in Form MGT-9 (Extract of Annual return) which is annexed as
‘Annexure-V’ of the Annual report of the Company

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(ies)

Yes, most of the BR initiatives of the company happen through the subsidiary companies and its group,
operating in different geographies.

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with; participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate percentage of such entity/entities? [ Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than
60%]

Yes. Most of the BR initiatives happen through the subsidiaries, 60% of the associated entities participate in the
BR initiatives of the Company.

SECTION D: BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY (BR) INFORMATION

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR:

a. Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

S.No Particulars Company Information

1. DIN 00136524

2. Name Mrs. Malavika Hegde

3. Designation Whole-time Director & CEO

b. Details of BR head(s)

S.No | Particulars Company Information

1. DIN Number (if applicable) NA

2. Name Sadananda Poojary

3. Designation Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
4. Telephone Number +91 80 40012345

5. E-Mail ID investors(@coffeedaygroup.com

Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs)) Business Responsibility Policy/policies
P1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life
cycle.

P3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees.

P4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged,

vulnerable and marginalized.
P5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.
P6: Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.
P7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.
P8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.
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a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N):
No. | Questions P P (P P4 | P |P |P |[P8 | P
1 2 |3 516 |7 9
1 Do you have a policy/ policies for: vy I|lyvyly|l Yy |Yy|lY|lY | Y |Y
2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders? Yes
3 Does the policy confirm to any national / international The policies confirms to the National & International
standards? If yes, specify? (50 words) Standards to demonstrate the ability to consistently
provide products and services that meet customer and
regulatory requirements like ISO 22000 (Food Safety
Management System), ISO 9000 (requirements for a
quality management system), ILO conventions
ratified by our Country and IFC Performance
Standards.
4 Has the policy being approved by the Board? Policies mandated under the Companies Act, 2013
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are approved
appropriate Board Director? by the Board and other policies are approved by the
Functional Heads of the Company as appropriate.
5 Does the company have a specified committee of the The Company has CSR Committee, Audit
Board/ Director/ Official to oversee the implementation ~ |Committee, Internal Complaints Committee and also
of the policy? adequate internal control systems to oversee the
implementation of policies.
6 Has the policy been formally communicated to all 'Yes, wherever appropriate
relevant internal and external stakeholders?
7 Does the company have in-house structure to implement  [Yes
the policy/ policies?
8 Does the Company have a grievance redressal 'Yes, wherever appropriate
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ policies?
9 Has the company carried out independent audit/ 'Y'es, wherever appropriate
evaluation of the working of this policy by an internal or
external agency?
10 | Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? The links to view the policies online are given herein

below*.

*Link to Company’s Policies:

>

>
>

Business Responsibility Policy -

http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/BUSINESS%20RESPONSIBILITY%20REPORT%20POLICY .pdf

CSR Policy - http://www.coffeeday.com/PDF/CSR-Policy-CDEL.pdf

Whistle Blower Policy - https://coffeeday.com/PDF/WhistleBlower.pdf

b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2
options)

No.

Questions

The company has not understood the Principles

Not Applicable

2 The company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a
position to formulate and implement the policies on
specified principles

3 The company does not have financial or manpower
resources available for the task

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months
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5 It is planned to be done within the next 1 year

6 Any other reason (please specify)

| GOVERNANCE RELATED TO BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY (BR):

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR
performance of the Company.

The BR performance of the Company under various principles are periodically assessed by CEO.

b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report?
How frequently it is published?

The Business Responsibility Report is part of Annual Report, being published by the Company for FY
2020-21. The same will be disclosed on the website of the Company www.coffeeday.com

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE — WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

Coffee Day is committed to doing business in an efficient, responsible, honest and ethical manner. Corporate
governance practice goes beyond compliance and involves a company-wide commitment and has become the integral
part of business to ensure fairness, transparency and integrity of the management.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the Company? ¥es/ No. Does it extend to the
Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGQOs/Others?

The core values of the Company’s governance process include independence, integrity, accountability, transparency,
responsibility and fairness. The business policies are based on ethical conduct, health, safety and a commitment to
building long term sustainable relationships with relevant stakeholders.

The Company follows the principles of Ethics, Transparency and Accountability. Coffee Day firmly believes that good
Corporate Governance is a pre-requisite for meeting the needs and aspirations of its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Further, the Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of
the Company to approach the Ethics Committee or Chairman of the Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee of the Company for reporting genuine concerns. The Whistle Blower Policy provides a platform for
reporting unethical behaviour, fraud and actual or potential violation of the Code.

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints
Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

During the FY ending March 2021, 100% of minor complaints received from other stakeholders were resolved.
Presently no major complaints or issues from employees/other stakeholders are pending.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability
throughout their life cycle

Coffee Day believes in providing products which are safe for its consumers and achieving growth in a responsible
manner.

The company shall raise the consumer's awareness of their rights through education, product labeling, appropriate and
helpful marketing communication, full details of contents and composition as per the applicable laws and promotion of
safe usage and disposal.

68



GCOFFee

Day
Environment, health and safety continues to be key focus area and the Company strives to reduce its environmental
impact through various initiatives in the field of Energy Efficiency and Conservation.

1) List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental
concerns, risks and/or opportunities.

At Coffee Day, we have integrated our Social Responsibility activities into our daily operations. That’s why
our commercial success is coupled with initiatives that empower communities and protect the environment.
These initiatives include buying and selling ethically-sourced coffee, educating underprivileged rural youth
and forging avenues to employ a number of differently-abled people with us.

2) For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw
material etc.) per unit of product (optional):

The Company endeavours to embed the principles of sustainability, as far as practicable, into the various
stages of product or service life-cycle, including procurement of raw material/service, processing of product or
delivery of service, transportation of raw materials and finished goods, and disposal by consumers.

The Company has been continuously improving on resource use efficiencies, especially that of common
resources such as water and energy.

The Company’s concerted efforts in optimising resource use efficiency and focused energy programs have
been established with a view to carry out specific initiatives in the field of Energy Efficiency and
Conservation. Various initiatives for conservation of energy and reducing environmental impact are detailed in
Principle 6 of this BRR.

3) Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

Pertaining to sourcing of coffee beans, we are committed to offer ethically-purchased and responsibly- grown
coffee.. The Company endeavours to embed sustainability throughout its supply chain system.

4) Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers,
including communities surrounding their place of work?

The welfare of the coffee farming community is high on our agenda, our coffees are sourced from thousands of
small coffee planters, who made us who we are today and we're glad to be a part of their lives.

While Coffee Day’s core competence lies in the Coffee growing/brewing/serving, increased demand for
serving a variety of food items and beverages under the same brand has made it to diversify its offerings,
including exclusive offerings customized to the needs of various geographic and demographic segments of the
society. Seasonality in supply and demand, lower shelf life, market dynamics, demand for variety in product
and packaging, higher expectations on product quality and delivery, all have added extra dimensions to the
challenge, which is effectively handled by its Supply Chain team. We work with vendors extensively to
improve capacities and capabilities which results in high standards of food safety.

5) Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If, yes what is the percentage of
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so.

We strive to foster a socially responsible corporate culture by introducing a balanced approach to business by
addressing social and environmental challenges through required investments, technological up gradation,
necessary resource allocation and stakeholder engagements. Coffee Day plays a catalyst role in bringing these
changes, step by step.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

Coffee Day acknowledges that the employees are its greatest assets and is consistently taking various initiatives,
adopting various policies, conducting training programmes etc., to enable the employees to feel good, live healthy and
work safely.

For the Company, learning and development is a business critical priority for enhancing capability, strengthening the
leadership pipeline and fostering employee engagement.
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Coffee Day provides a work environment that is free from any discrimination or harassment, promotes health and safety
and prohibits using, selling or distributing controlled substances.

The Company believes all employees are important stakeholders in the enterprise and that building a culture of mutual
trust, respect, interdependence and meaningful engagement is imperative. As such, it respects the dignity of the
individual and the freedom of employees to lawfully organise themselves into interest groups, independent of
supervision by the management.
1.  Total number of employees : 5,025*
2. Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis : 984
3 Number of permanent employees with disabilities : 28
4. Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management : No
5 Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last
financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year: Nil
6.  What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the
last year? : 100%
*The data pertains to employees of CDEL & Resort Operations

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Coffee Day aims to meet the expectations of its stakeholders that include shareholders, consumers, farmers, suppliers,
media and the government. Coffee Day understands the needs of its stakeholders and develops action plans to fulfil
them while achieving its business goals.

Coffee Day has in place investor redressal system, consumer call centres and various other committees to protect the
interest of all the stakeholders. It discloses all the relevant information about its products, business, financial
performance, press releases and other statutory information on the website of the Company to ensure effective
stakeholders engagement.

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?
Coffee Day has mapped its internal and external stakeholders.

2. Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized
stakeholders?

The Company is committed towards proactively engaging with all the employees, business associates,
customers and communities who may be disadvantaged, vulnerable or marginalized.

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable
and marginalized stakeholders?

Coffee Day thinks beyond business and undertakes various initiatives to improve the lives of the lower
socioeconomic sections of the society.

In our endeavor to embrace corporate social responsibility through the company's actions on today’s youth,
CCD has created avenues for youth that empower them to realize their potential, and to move from opportunity
anticipated to opportunity realized.

In states like Karnataka, Bihar, Kerala and Orissa, majority of them, particularly in villages or rural areas, do
not have access to vocational education or employment opportunities. We have been able to empower the
youth with tools that lead to self improvement, increases employability and also provide Job opportunities
within the organization.
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Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

The company has integrated respect for human rights in its management systems, in particular through assessing and
managing human rights impacts of operations, and ensuring all individuals impacted by the business have access to
grievance mechanisms.

Coffee Day firmly believes in upholding and promoting human rights. Human Rights are protected under Whistle
Blower Policy, Anti - Sexual Harassment Policy, and Employee Welfare Policies.

Grievance Redressal Systems are put in place like Internal Complaints Committee, which resolves the issues reported in
an expeditious manner.

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/Joint
Ventures/ Suppliers/ Contractors/ NGOs/Others?

Code of Business Conduct extends not only to employees of Coffee Day and others who work with, or
represent Coffee Day directly or indirectly. Coffee Day’s Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy is applicable to all
the employees including contractual and also covers trainees, consultants and contractors.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was
satisfactorily resolved by the management?

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company did not receive any complaint with regard to violation of
human rights.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

Coffee Day understands its responsibility towards environment and has taken various initiatives to reduce its
environmental impact. Energy conservation continues to be a priority area of the Company.

Focused energy programs have been established with a view to carry out specific initiatives in the field of Energy
Efficiency and Conservation.

The Company has taken various initiatives for conservation of energy and reducing its environmental impact, few of
them are listed below:

e Energy Management by conducting energy audits and introducing innovative ways of saving power — This
includes introducing of high end online energy monitoring system in majority of outlets, With Internet of
Things (IoT) it is possible to remotely monitor and manage energy usage and take timely actions to stop
inefficiencies. These initiatives have reduced the energy consumption substantially

e Installing advanced energy saving gadgets like capacitor banks and indigenised components like thermo
controllers for the ovens and electronic timers to control the Air Conditioners during peak hours of
operations.

e by using LED lighting and usage of Bureau of Energy Efficiency’s (BEE) star rating equipments

e Introducing eco-friendly paper bags in all the outlets of the Company

e Technological up-gradation by installing higher efficiency state-of-the-art machineries in the coffee roasting
unit.

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/ Contractors/NGOQOs/others.

The Policy covers company and extends to all its subsidiary companies.

2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate
change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Climate change, global warming and environmental degradation pose unique challenges as well as opportunities
for Coffee Day. The Company is continually investing in new technologies, implementing process improvements

and innovation to address the global environmental challenges.

3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N
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The Company follows sound environmental management practices across all its business units to assess and

address potential environmental risks.

Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

While the Company has so far not registered any project related to Clean Development Mechanism, it is
continuously endeavouring to identify opportunities to contribute in this regard.

Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable
energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

No.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB
for the financial year being reported?

All applicable statutory requirements are complied within acceptable levels.

Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

The Company did not receive any show cause/ legal notices from CPCB/SPCB which are pending as on end of
financial year 2020-21.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible
manner

The Company recognizes that it operates within the specified legislative and policy frameworks prescribed by the
Government, which guide its growth and also provide for certain desirable restrictions and boundaries.

The Company shall perform the function of policy advocacy in a transparent and responsible manner while engaging
with all the authorities and shall take into account the Companies as well as the larger national/industry interest.

1.

Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber or association?

Yes, one subsidiary company (Coffee Day Global Limited) is member of the Federation of Karnataka
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FKCCI)

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public
good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas (Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms,
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy Security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles,
Others)

No

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

Coffee Day supports the principle of inclusive growth and equitable development through its core business

1.

Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

The company innovates and invest in products, technologies and processes that promotes the well-being of all
segments of society, including vulnerable and marginalized groups.
Are the programmes /projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external

NGO/government structures/any other organization?

The programmes/projects are undertaken through in-house team / own foundation/NGO/Government
Structures/any other organization as appropriate.
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3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

The Company assesses the impact of its Projects and Programs. an update on impact assessment is placed
before the CEO for the review.

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and
the details of the projects undertaken?

The company at standalone level has loss for the previous year is Rs. (95.06) Crores. Hence, the Company has
not contributed towards any Community developments projects.

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

At Coffee Day, the CSR projects and programs are undertaken after identifying the communities that require

development. The Company also interacts with the stakeholders to ensure that its projects are being
implemented effectively.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner
The Company shall take into account the overall well-being of the customers and that of society.

Coffee Day’s consistent commitment to provide world-class products/services to consumers has made it as one of the
most trusted, valuable and popular brands among Indian consumers.

The Company shall ensure that wherever applicable all the information that is statutorily required to be disclosed in

relation to its products are disclosed truthfully and factually to the consumers through labeling so that the consumers
can exercise their freedom to consume in a responsible manner and exercise due care in utilization of natural resources.

The Company also ensures that the promotion and advertisement of its products/services do not mislead or confuse the
customers and other stakeholders. Adequate grievance handling mechanisms are in place to address customer concerns

and feedback.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

During the previous FY ending 31 March 2021, 100% of complaints received from the customers were
resolved. Presently no major complaints are pending.

2. Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)

Coffee Day is displaying additional product related information, ‘Keep your city clean’ symbol on take away
cups over and above what is mandated as per the laws.

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the Company regarding unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on
end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in about S0 words or so.

No

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?

Yes, as part of the consumer complaint handling process, the Company carries out consumer satisfaction
studies. Results are shared with the stakeholders for necessary action to improve the process.
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ANNEXURE-VII

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION

Day”

Pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in
terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

thereof and point out if there are any

exceptional circumstances for
increase  in  the  managerial
remuneration

S. No. Requirements Disclosure
The ratio of the remuneration of
each director to the median . . .
1. . Designation Ratio
remuneration of the employees for
the financial year 2020-21
. Whole-time
Mrs. Malavika Hegde . NIL
Director
The remuneration paid to
2. independent directors were as Designation
below:
Independent
Mr. S.V. R th . .
’ angana Director Few Independent directors of the
. . Independent Company were in receipt of sitting
Dr. Albert Hieronimus Director fees for attending the Board and
Woman Committee meetings and are not
Dr. Vasundhara Davi* Independent paid any remuneration. Current
Director sitting fee for attending Board &
Mr. Giri Devanur* Independent committee Meetings are Rs.
Director 1,00,000/-
Mr. K.R.Mohan* Independent
Director
CFO Refer Note -1
The  percentage  increase in | CS
remuneration of each director, Represents the allocated portion of salary based on time
CFO, CEO, CS in the financial year | spent.
The percentage increase in the . . .
. . Due to COVID — 19 there is no major salary increment
3. median remuneration of employees
. . However overall salary cost has been reduced.
in the financial year
4 The number of permanent employees 142
: on the roll of the Company
Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its
comparison. with the percent%le Due to COVID — 19 there is no major salary increment
5. increase  in  the  managerial
. S . However overall salary cost has been reduced.
remuneration and  justification
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company

Affirmation that the remuneration is
6. as per the remuneration policy of the

Yes, it is affirmed.

*Mrs. Vasundhara Devi, Mr. Giri Devanur and Mr. K.R.Mohan were appointed on the Board on 7™
December 2020

Ref Note 1 : Change in remuneration compared to last financial year, owing to charging entire
remuneration to the company effective July 2020, as against allocated portion to the company &
subsidiary. The employee continues to draw same remuneration without increase in FY 20-21,
compared to FY 19-20

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30" June 2021

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
of Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
S.V.Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim Chairman Whole-time Director
&Independent Director DIN — 00136524

DIN- 00323799

Information as required under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2021

A. Top 10 Employees (in terms of remuneration)

Employee Designation in the | Qualification Previous Total Designation | Amount (In
Name Company Employer Experienc | at Previous Rs.)
e Employer
(In Yrs)
R. Ram Chief Financial A.C.A.,B.Com Caterpillar India | 34 Director 9,338,162/-'
Mohan Officer
Philip T Senior General A.C.A., B.Com Coffee Day 24 Senior 6,406,197/-
Athyal Manager— Global Limited General
Corporate Finance Manager —

Corporate

Finance
Balachandar Group Head- M.S.(Industrial Strides Acrolabs | 32 Chief Human | 2,600,000/-°
Natarajan Human Resource Management) Limited. Resource

officer
Jayaraj C Director A.C.A,,B.Com | Coffee Day 30 President — 1,677,848/-
Hubli Global Ltd Corporate

Finance
Venkata Manager Corporate | A.C.A., B.Com | Varma & 5.5 Deputy 1,598,640/-
Ramana T Finance Varma Chartered Manager

Accountants
Nagaraj G V Head Finance BBM Wilderness 20 Manager 1,213,410/-
Resorts Pvt Ltd
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Sadananda Company Secretary | F.C.S,J.C.W.AI, | K.S.F.C 31 Deputy 1,048,518/
Poojary and  Compliance | B.Com Manager
Officer
Shripad Gejje MBA, B.Com Terra Firma 16 Accounts 8606,172/-
(SWM) Chennai Officer
Pvt Ltd
Thammaiah. Resort Manager BBA ITC Limited 13 General 685,186/-
C.M (Hospitality Manager
Management)
Vikas Sharma | Executive Chef Master of AALIA Resort 20 Executive 556,746/-
Tourism (JPL Hospitality Chef
Pvt Ltd.,)

1 Joined to CDEL w.e.f 1** July, 2020.
2 Joined w.e.f O1st July 2020

3  Deputed to CDEL w.e.f 1" Aug, 2020 & Deputed to CDGL w.e.f from 01* Oct 2020.
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

ANNEXURE-VIII

Form AOC-1

"Part -A : Subsidiaries"
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary Companies as on March 31, 2021

COFFee
Day

(Rs. In Crores)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
S. No. Name of the Subsidiary Company Reporting | Reporting [ Exchange rate as| Share | Reserves & | Total Assets | Total Liabilities Investments | Percentage | Turnover | Profit before |Provision for| Profit after | Proposed
period currency on March 31, | Capital Surplus excluding (6) & (7) of Holding Taxation Taxation Taxation Dividend
2021 (PBT) (PAT)
1 [Coffee Day Global Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 19.15 687.05 2,621.67 1,915.47 29.12 82.09% 399.57 (449.96) (154.87) (295.08)
2 |Classic Coffee Curing Works Apr-March INR 1.00 3.10 (1.56) 10.90 9.36 - 100.00% - (0.04) - (0.04)
3 |Coffeelab Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 0.06 (1.45) 0.72 2.11 - 100.00% 1.26 (0.20) - (0.20)
4 [A N Coffeeday International Limited Apr-March USD 73.11 2.29 85.79 88.08 0.13 - 100.00% - - - -
Coffee Day Gastronomie Und Kaffeehandles
5 |GmbH Apr-March | EURO 85.78 0.11 (1.19) 2.41 3.50 - 100.00% - - - -
6 |Coffee Day C Z a.s Apr-March CKZ 3.29 33.89 (36.12) 3.22 5.45 - 100.00% - - - -
Coffeeday Hotels & Resorts Private Limited
7 Apr-March INR 1.00 11.22 (86.98) 254.43 330.19 35.22 100.00% 10.21 (11.06) - (11.06)
8 |Wilderness Resorts Private Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 1.28 (10.84) 57.79 67.35 0.13 100.00% - (0.12) - (0.12)
Karnataka Wildlife Resorts Private Limited
o Apr-March INR 1.00 1.30 (22.66) 59.36 80.72 - 100.00% 6.73 0.50 - 0.50
10 | Tanglin Developments Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 5.13 997.56 3,111.48 2,108.80 434.61 87.12% 2.17 (62.29) 0.13 (62.42)
Tanglin Retail Reality Developments Private
' | Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 0.10 (285.15) 1,664.29 1,949.33 17.71 100.00% . (44.27) 0.01 (44.28)
12 _|Giri Vidhyuth (India) Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 0.87 (99.91) 480.89 579.93 3.04 100.00% - (0.00) - (0.00)
13 [Coffee Day Kabini Resorts Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 - (100.23) 10.87 111.10 - 100.00% 0.12 0.11 0.03 0.08
14 |Coffee Day Trading Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 34.83 1,250.82 1,380.59 94.93 8.63 88.77% 0.01 (8.23) (0.09) (8.14)
Magnasoft Consulting India Private Limited
15 Apr-March INR 1.00 3.59 16.48 38.38 18.31 0.01 72.98% 31.74 5.19 1.60 3.58
16 [Magnasoft Europe Limited Apr-March GBP 100.75 0.01 (0.84) 0.05 0.88 - 100.00% - (0.04) - (0.04)
17 _|Magnasoft Spatial Services Inc. Apr-March USD 73.11 - (2.63) 1.81 4.44 - 100.00% 3.69 (0.21) - (0.21)
18 [Way2Wealth Capital Private Limited Apr-March INR 1.00 10.00 5.47 15.57 0.11 - 99.99% 0.72 (2.91) 0.02 (2.93)
Way2Wealth Enterprises Private Limited
19 Apr-March INR 1.00 0.01 (0.29) 0.03 0.31 - 100.00% (0.06) (0.98) (0.03) (0.95)
20 _[Calculus Traders LLP Apr-March INR 1.00 0.01 (0.11) 0.03 0.13 - 99.99% 0.41 0.05 0.02 0.04
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
S V Ranganath Malavika Hegde

Interim Chairman & Independent Director

DIN: 00323799

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30 June 2021

Whole-time Director

DIN: 00136524
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"Part -B : Associates and Joint Ventures"
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Associates and Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2021

(Rs. In Crores)

Subsidiaries

Sical Logistics Limited

Sical Infra Assets Limited

Sical Iron Ore Terminal Limited

Sical Iron Ore Terminal (Mangalore) Limited

Sical Connect Limited [erstwhile known as Norsea Offshore India Limited]

Sical Mining Limited

Sical Washeries limited

Sical Saumya Mining Limited

Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited

Sical Supply Chain Solution Limited (erstwhile known as Sical Adams Offshore Limited)
Bergen Offshore Logistics Pte. Limited

Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited

Sical Logixpress Private Limited (erstwhile known as PNX Logistics Private Limited)
PAT Chems Private Limited

Develecto Mining Limited

Joint Ventures
PSA Sical Terminals Limited
Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Private Limited

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Latest Audited No. of Shares held by the Amount of Reason why the Net worth attributable to . .
1\?‘; Name of the Company Cazfz:ya(:lf the Balance Sheet | Company in Associate/JV at | Investment in I’el;z:l(;?nge of Associate is not shareholding as per latest Pro(l:'l‘ths(()):liZl;iteil(;f:]d n
: pany date the year end Associates g consolidated audited Balance Sheet

1 [Barefoot Resorts and Leisure India Private Limited Associate 31-Mar-21 17,672 16.00 27.69% NA 7.81 (0.63)

2 |Coffee Day Schaerer Technologies Private Limited Joint Venture 31-Mar-21 686,000 0.69 49.00% NA E -

3 |Coffee Day Consuliancy Services Private Limited Joint Venture 31-Mar-21 26,000,002 26.00 51.00% NA 49.20 (11.68)

(Consolidated)

Notes:

1 There is a significant influence due to percentage of capital

2 Names of Subsidiaries or Associates or Joint Ventures where group lost control
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"Part -B : Associates and Joint Ventures"
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Associates and Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2021

3 Name of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year are:
Subsidiaries

Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited
Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited
Way2Wealth Brokers Private Limited
Way2Wealth Commodities Private Limited

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
S V Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim Chairman & Independent Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 00323799 DIN: 00136524

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30 June 2021
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ANNEXURE - IX

FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
®
(8
(h)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

date(s) of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any:

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to

section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of Karnataka Wildlife Resorts Private Limited
relationship
b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions Hospitality service
c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Yearly
transactions
d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Rs. 1.47/- Crores
transactions including the value, if any:
e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)
f. Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of Coffee Day Global Limited
relationship
b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions Rent Paid
c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Yearly
transactions
d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Rs. 0.009/- Crores
transactions including the value, if any:
e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)
f. Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of Coffee Day Global Limited
relationship
b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions Trademark sub license fee
c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Yearly
transactions
d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Rs. 0.12 Crores
transactions including the value, if any:
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Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)

Amount paid as advances, if any:

NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Coffee Day Global Limited

Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions

Purchase of consumables

Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Yearly

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

Rs. 0.01 Crores

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)

Amount paid as advances, if any:

NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Tanglin Developments Limited

Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions

Trademark license fee

Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Event based
transactions
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Rs.0.040/-

transactions including the value, if any:

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)

Amount paid as advances, if any:

NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Sical Logistics Ltd

Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions

Trademark license fee

Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Event based

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

Rs.0.038/-Crores

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)

Amount paid as advances, if any:

NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Way2wealth Securities Private Limited

Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions

Trademark license fee

Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Event based

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

Rs. 0.02/- Crores
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Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

17/07/2020 (Audit Committee omnibus approval)

Amount paid as advances, if any:

NIL

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30th June, 2021

For Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
S.V. Ranganath Malavika Hegde
Interim-Chairman & Whole-time Director
Independent Director DIN: 00136524

DIN: 00323799
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VENKATESH & CO
Chartered Accountants

To,
Members of

Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group’), its associates and its joint ventures, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter

referred to as ‘the consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, on
account of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we are unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for opinion of the consolidated financial

statement and hence we do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statement.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1. Disclaimer of opinion has been expressed in the reports of the Parent Company regarding the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. It is observed that there has been a change
in the percentage of shares held by the Company in two of its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2021,
vis-a-vis March 31, 2019, due to the invocation of shares by the lenders of the subsidiaries.
However, while considering the amount invested in the subsidiaries, the Management of the
Company has considered the erstwhile shareholding pattern prior to dilution as the Management
believes that the change in shareholding is temporary in nature and the shares pledged will be
redeemed back by the Company (refer to Note 62 of the consolidated financial statement).
However, these shares have been transferred to such lenders before March 31, 2021. We have
been informed that the lenders have not sold any of the shares invoked and consequently have not
made any adjustments to the loan outstanding. Accordingly, the Management believes that it is not
possible to attribute any sale value to the invoked shares. Consequently, the impact of the said
transfer on the book value of invoked shares of INR 156 Crores on the standalone financial

statements cannot be ascertained.

“SRI RANGA”, New No.151, Mambalam High Road, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.
Telefax : 2814 4763/64/65/66 Email : venkateshandco@gmail.com
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Further, the impact of the aforesaid on the consolidated financial statement, including but not
limited to the profit attributable to the non-controlling interest in the Company, cannot be
ascertained. Accordingly, the level of compliance to the requirements of the Indian Accounting

Standards cannot be ascertained by us.

In a letter dated July 27, 2019, signed by late Mr. V. G. Siddhartha, the Promoter and then Chairman
and Managing Director of the Parent Company, which has come to light, it was inter-alia stated
that the Management and auditors were unaware of all his transactions. Attention is drawn to Note
57 of the consolidated financial statement, wherein, consequently, the Board of Directors have
initiated an investigation into the circumstances leading to the statements made in the letter and
to scrutinize the books of accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. The investigation report
submitted on July 24, 2020, has concluded that a sum of INR 3,535 Crore is due from MACEL a
related entity to the subsidiaries of CDEL as on July 31, 2019. The report further concludes that
out of this sum, INR 842 Crore was due to the subsidiaries as on March 31, 2019, and the balance
sum of INR 2,693 Crore is the incremental outstanding which needs to be addressed. Further, the
Board of the Company in the board meeting on August 21, 2020, appointed Retired Hon'ble Justice
Sri K L Manjunath, former Judge of Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka to suggest and oversee actions
for recovery of the dues from MACEL and to help on any other associated matters. The future
course of action will be decided by the Management based on the decision taken by the Hon'ble
Justice Sri K L Manjunath. We are unable to comment on the appropriateness of the transactions,
including regulatory non-compliances, if any, and the recoverability of the amounts due in the
absence of requisite evidence not being made available to us and its impact to the consolidated

financial statement.

Further, the Auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint
ventures, along with the auditors of 3 subsidiaries and 2 step-down subsidiaries, based on their
audit, have issued a disclaimer of opinion due to the possible impact of the recoverability of dues
from MACEL.

In respect of the Parent Company and some of the subsidiaries, there are instances of non-
compliance with certain debt covenants and defaults in repayment of interest and borrowing as per
the schedule of repayment. We have been informed that during the year certain lenders have
exercised their right to recall the loan (refer Note 23A of the consolidated financial statement).

However, in the absence of the adequate evidence, we are unable to comment on the consequential

“SRI RANGA”, New No.151, Mambalam High Road, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.
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adjustments that might impact this consolidated financial statement on account of non-compliance
with debt covenants.

The Group has Goodwill of INR 368 Crore arising on consolidation (Refer Note 6 of the consolidated
financial statement). In view of the developments during the period, including the investigation
report submitted to the company, the Group is required to assess the said asset for impairment as
required by Ind AS 36, 'Impairment of Assets'. However, the same is pending as of March 31, 2021.
In the absence of a valuation report, we are unable to comment on whether any provisions on
account of impairment is required and the impact of the same on this consolidated financial
statement.

Auditors of 3 subsidiaries based on their audit, have issued a disclaimer of opnion due to doubts
on the recoverability of dues from 3 parties aggregating to INR 245 Crore (refer to Note 42 of the

consolidated financial statement).

Auditors of the subsidiary company have also highlighted non-compliance to the Indian Accounting
Standards governing Investment Property, on the grounds that the subject properties have not
been valued in with the methodology prescribed under the applicable Accounting Standard, but as
per the value prescribed by the Government of Karnataka (refer to Note 5C of the consolidated

financial statement).

We draw attention to the Note 61 of the consolidated financial statement, wherein it is described
that on March 10, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT') has initiated Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process ('CIRP') against one of the key step-subsidiaries of the Group,
namely M/s. Sical Logistics Limited. Considering the fact that the CIRP was initiated towards the
end of the fourth quarter, the Management has used the last reviewed financial results available
(i.e., results until December 31, 2020) due to the non-availability of results up to the date of loss

of control.

Further, auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in-turn has 3 step down subsidiaries and 2 Joint ventures
and the auditors of 1 other subsidiary along with 2 other step-down subsidiaries have also
emphasized that the amounts recoverable from M/s. SICAL Logistics Limited, in the view of the
Management, can be ascertained only after the receipt of initial report from the Resolution

Professional. Accordingly, no provision is made against the same.

The auditor of 1 subsidiary has also highlighted that the Company (refer to Note 59 of the

consolidated financial statement) is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

“SRI RANGA”, New No.151, Mambalam High Road, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.
Telefax : 2814 4763/64/65/66 Email : venkateshandco@gmail.com

85



VENKATESH & CO
Chartered Accountants

Bank of India Act, 1934 and has sought a one-time exemption of the same and response from the

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is awaited.

9. The auditors of 1 subsidiary and 1 step-down subsidiary issued a disclaimer of opinion due to non-
availability of appropriate evidence, confirmation of balances and statement of accounts with regard

to borrowings from certain lenders (refer Note 67 of the consolidated financial statement).

Material uncertainty relating to Going Concern

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared by the Management and Board
of Directors using the going concern assumption (Refer Note 60 of the consolidated financial
statement). The matters detailed in the above paragraphs may have a consequential implication on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Further, the material uncertainty over using the Going
Concern assumption has also been established by several other component auditors of the Group, as
well. However, the Group is confident of meeting its obligations in the normal course of business and

accordingly the accounts of the Group have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis.

Disclaimer of Opinion

In view of the nature of the matters described in paragraph ‘Basis for disclaimer of opinion’ above for
which absence of sufficient evidence has resulted in limitation on work and the consequent adjustments
not being determined and based on the consideration of the audit reports of the other auditors referred
to in paragraph ‘Emphasis of Matter’ below, we are unable to state whether the accompanying
consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the relevant Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, or that the Consolidated Financial Statement discloses the
information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations including the
manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. Thus, we express

a disclaimer of opinion on the accompanying Consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. The Parent Company has also received a notice from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, calling
for information in connection with a proposed enquiry under Section 206 of the Companies Act,

2013 (refer to Note 68 of the consolidated financial statement) which has been responded to by
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the Company. Pending the outcome of the enquiry and related proceedings, we are unable to

comment on the impact of the same on the consolidated financial statement.

The Parent Company has filed an application seeking a one-time exemption from registering itself
as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) as required by Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and other related provisions (refer to Note 59 of this consolidated financial
statement). As at the date of this consolidated financial statement, a response from the Reserve
Bank of India is awaited. In the absence of such exemption, we are unable to comment on the
compliance with the aforesaid regulations and consequential impact, if any on this consolidated

financial statement.

The Parent Company along with 1 of its subsidiaries has entered into an Agreement to sell
Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited and its certain subsidiaries to Shriram Ownership Trust (‘the
purchaser’) (refer Note 44 of the consolidated financial statement). Based on the agreement, INR
12.10 Crore is receivable by the company in form of preceding year’s tax refunds and SEBI deposits
from the purchaser in form of reimbursement, subject to realisation. Further a sum of INR 2 Crore
has been withheld by the purchaser per the agreement. An exceptional profit of INR 15.51 Crore

has been recognised on the said sale transaction at the Group level.

In case of 1 subsidiary, the concerned Auditor has emphasized that interest on the loans to related
parties has not been charged (refer to Note 51 of the consolidated financial statement) and that

the same is not consistent as compared to earlier periods.

The auditor of 1 subsidiary has emphasized (refer to Note 43 of the consolidated financial
statement) on the outstanding income tax dues of INR 89.60 crores relating to for AY 2019-20 and
AY 2020-21.

In case of the Parent Company, 1 subsidiary, which in-turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint
ventures and in the case of 1 subsidiary and 1 step-down subsidiary, the concerned auditors have
emphasized that balance confirmations in case of certain assets and liabilities have not been
provided to them. Reliance is placed on the books of accounts provided by the Management (refer

Note 67 to the consolidated financial statement).

The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have
drawn attention to the fact that the vending machine cabinets at customers' place are fully
depreciated to the extent of INR 79.78 Crores as the salvage value is described as Nil (refer Note

4 of the consolidated financial statement).
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8. The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have
drawn attention to the details of cases filed against the company before NCLT (refer Note 44 of the
consolidated financial statement). Further, the auditors have also emphasized that interest expense

of INR 16.13 Crores in respect of credit facilities from two lenders has not been recognized.

9. The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures have
drawn attention to the fact that one of the lenders have Red Flagged credit facility and lenders of
the company have appointed a forensic auditor. Pending receipt of such report, effect of the same
on these consolidated financial statements is not ascertainable (refer Note 65 of the consolidated

financial statement).

10. The auditors of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures has
drawn attention to categorisation of the company as 'Fraud' by M/s. Lakshmi Vilas Bank (presently
DBS Bank India Limited) and further correspondence with the bank by the company is disclosed

(refer Note 63 of the consolidated financial statement).

11. The auditor of 1 subsidiary, which in turn has 3 step-down subsidiaries and 2 joint ventures has
drawn attention to the liquidation process of the foreign subsidiaries (refer Note 46 of the

consolidated financial statement).

12. The Auditors of 2 step-down subsidiaries of the Company have emphasized that the Companies
have impaired the investments made in M/s. Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd and recognized impairment

loss during the year of INR 1.86 Crore (refer Note 15 of the consolidated financial statement).

13. The Auditors of 1 step-down subsidiary of the Company has emphasized that there has been a
change in shareholding of the Company pending permission from Reserve Bank of India (refer Note

66 to the consolidated financial statement).
Our opinion is not modified due to the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Revenue recognition
Refer Note 3(a) of the consolidated financial
statements for the revenue recognition policies

followed by the Group.

The Group, through its subsidiary Coffee Day
Global Limited earns a significant portion of
revenue from sale of products (Coffee and
related business) which comprise:

- Sale of coffee beans

- Sale of food, beverages and other items

- Sale of merchandise items

- Sale of traded goods

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because the Group and its external
stakeholders focus on revenue from coffee and
related business as a key performance indicator.
This could create an incentive for revenue to be
overstated or recognised before the point of

recognition.

In view of the significance of the matter the
auditor of the subsidiary has reported that the
following audit procedures were applied in this
area, among others to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence:

e We assessed the appropriateness of the
revenue recognition accounting policies by
comparing with applicable accounting
standards.

e We evaluated the design of key controls and
operating effectiveness of the relevant key
controls with respect to revenue recognition
on selected transactions.

e We performed substantive testing of
underlying documents on selected samples
of revenue transactions, recorded during the
year using statistical sampling.

e We carried out analytical procedures on
revenue recognised during the year to
inquire on unusual variances, if any.

e We tested, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the financial year end date to determine
whether the revenue had been recognised in
the appropriate financial period.

e We tested manual journal entries posted to
revenue account to identify unusual items, if

any.

Identification and compliance of related
party transactions (RPT’s)

The Group has numerous transactions with
related parties during the year. The related party
balances as at March 31, 2021 and related party

In view of the significance of the matter the
auditor of the subsidiary has reported that the
following audit procedures were applied in this
area, among others to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence:
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transactions are disclosed in Note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with related parties mainly
comprise transactions between the Group and
other entities which are directly / indirectly
controlled by the shareholders with significant

influence of the Group.

We identified related party transactions as a key
audit matter because of risks with respect to
completeness of disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements; compliance
with statutory regulations governing related
party relationships such as the Companies Act
2013 and SEBI Regulations and the judgment
involved in assessing whether transactions with

related parties are undertaken at arms’ length

e We tested key controls to identify and
disclose related party relationships and
transactions in accordance with the relevant
accounting standard and also tested controls
on the required approval process of such
related party transactions.

e We carried out an assessment of compliance
with the listing regulations and the
regulations under the Companies Act, 2013,
including checking of approvals as specified
in Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the related party
transactions. In cases where the matter was
subject to varied interpretations, we have
relied on opinions obtained by management
from independent legal practitioners.

e We considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, relating to
the related party transactions.

e For transactions with related parties, we
inspected relevant ledgers, agreements and
other information that may indicate the
existence of related party relationships or
transactions. We also tested completeness of
related parties with reference to the various
registers maintained by the Company
statutorily.

e We have tested on a sample basis,
Management’s assessment of related party

transactions for arm'’s length pricing.

Existence and impairment of Trade
Receivables of Sical Logistics Limited, a
subsidiary of the Holding Company:

Trade Receivables are significant to the Group’s
statements.  The

consolidated financial

In view of the significance of the matter the
auditor of the subsidiary has reported that the
following audit procedures in this area were
applied, among others to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence:
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collectability of trade receivables is a key element
of the Company’s working capital management,
which is managed on an ongoing basis by its

management.

In few cases trade receivables are overdue as
matters are pending with Arbitration Tribunal/
Conciliation Committee. Owing to interpretation
in certain contractual terms, the receivables are
overdue and are referred for decision by
Arbitration  Tribunal/Conciliation = Committee.
However, Management is confident of recovering

the dues.

In calculating the Expected Credit Loss as per Ind
AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”, the subsidiary
Company has also considered the estimation of
probable future customer default and has
considered an estimation of possible effect from
the pandemic relating to COVID 19. Given the
magnitude and judgment involved in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables, we

have identified this as a key audit matter.

e Evaluated the design and implementation of
key controls in place around the calculation
of loss provisioning including the validation
of management estimates.

e Reviewed and challenged the information
used to determine the impairment allowance
by considering cash collection performance
against historical trends and the level of
impairment allowance over time.

e Evaluated management’s assumptions in
determining the provision for impairment of
trade receivables, by analysing the ageing of
receivables, contractual terms, assessing
significant overdue trade receivables and
specific local risks, combined with the legal
documentations, where applicable.

e Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the consolidated financial

statements and found appropriate.

Loss on assets sold during the year

During the FY 2019-20, the Parent Company
along with M/s. Tanglin Developments Limited (a
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an
agreement to sell the shares of Way2Wealth
Securities Private Limited and certain subsidiaries
held by the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
to Shriram Ownership Trust, subject to the
closing conditions and required statutory

approvals.

In view of the significance of the matter we
applied the following audit procedures in this
area, among others to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence:

e Evaluating the criteria required under Ind AS
105 for classification of a non-current asset
as held for sale and an independent
assessment of Management's evaluation of
how each of such criteria is met.

e Detailed review of the computation adopted
by the management to ensure that the same

is in line with the share purchase agreement
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Accordingly, the Company classified investment
in shares of Way2Wealth Securities Private
Limited was as “Non currents assets held for
sale” as it believed that the necessary criteria

have been met.

Subsequently, on the said assets were sold and
profit of INR 15 Crores has been recognized
under exceptional items in the consolidated

financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of

the transaction and the fact that significant

judgements were required by management.

entered into between the Group and the

purchaser.

We have validated the appropriateness of the
related disclosures in Note 44 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements of 20 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of INR 2,960 Crore as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of INR 971 Crore and net cash
outflows amounting to INR 92 Crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s
share of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of INR 2 Crore for the year ended March 31,
2021, in respect of one associate and three joint ventures, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section

143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is

based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.

2. Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries/associates and joint

ventures located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective

“SRI RANGA”, New No.151, Mambalam High Road, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.
Telefax : 2814 4763/64/65/66 Email : venkateshandco@gmail.com

92



VENKATESH & CO
Chartered Accountants

countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our opinion in so far as it relates to
the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries/associates and joint ventures located outside India is
based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management

of the Company and audited by the respective auditors.

Further out of the subsidiaries mentioned in point (a) above, we did not audit the financial
statements of 3 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of INR 6 Crores as at
March 31, 2021, total revenues of INR Nil, total comprehensive income of INR Nil and Net cash
outflows amounting to INR Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Statement.
These financial statements have been certified by the management. Our opinion on the Statement,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is

based on the management certified financial statements.

Further, out of the subsidiaries mentioned in point (a) above, we further did not audit the financial
statement of one Joint Venture (including its subsidiary) whose share of loss of INR 12 Crores is
considered in the Statement. These financial statements have been certified by the Management.
Our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in

respect of these joint venture is based on the management certified financial statements.

Further, out of the subsidiaries mentioned in point (a) above, we further did not audit the financial
statement of 1 associate whose share of loss of INR 1 Crore is considered in the Statement. These
financial statements have been certified by the Management. Our opinion on the Statement, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate is based on the

management certified financial statements.

We further draw your attention to the Note 69 to the consolidated financial statement, which
describes the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the company’s financial results.
The same will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain. The same has also been

emphasized by the other Auditors of the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the

Management.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report

thereon
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The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but

does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance opinion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Management and those charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates
and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of

the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint

ventures is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process of each Company.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our opinions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities
or business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
information of such entities. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described

in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the
other auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports

of the other auditors on consolidated financial statements of such subsidiaries, associates and joint
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ventures as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report,

to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements, except as stated in Basis for disclaimer opinion section.
Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of disclaimer opinion
section above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account, except for the matters described in the Basis of disclaimer of opinion
paragraph.

Except for the effects of the matter described in Basis for disclaimer opinion and the
Emphasis of Matter Section above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary and associates
companies and joint ventures incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group, its
associates and joint ventures incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such

controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

2. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16), in our

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of

the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures

incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year

by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures to its

directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to

any director by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint

ventures is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of

Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be

commented upon by us.
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3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March
31, 2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint
ventures. Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements;

b. The Group, its associates and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31,
2021; and

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, associate companies

and joint ventures incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For Venkatesh & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 004636S

-s/d-

CA Dasaraty V

Partner

Membership Number: 026336
UDIN: 21026336AAAAFL3281

Chennai, June 30, 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements

of Coffee Day Enterprises Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Holding Company’) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which

are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and its joint venture companies, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding

of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
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evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial

Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph in

our main audit report, we are unable to comment on the effectiveness of the internal financial controls
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over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS consolidated financial statements as at March
31, 2021 and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the

consolidated financial statements of the Company.
Disclaimer of Opinion

Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” paragraph
above, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate evidence to provide a basis for our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference

to these Ind AS consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2021.
Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to twenty subsidiary companies, one associate companies and three joint venture companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such

companies incorporated in India.

We would also like to highlight that the auditors of one of the subsidiary companies have issued a
qualified opinion on the internal financial controls maintained by the said subsidiary entity on account
of non-compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related rules therein with
regard to preparation of the consolidated financial statements under Division II of Schedule III to the
Act.

For Venkatesh & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 004636S

-s/d-

CA Dasaraty V

Partner

Membership Number: 026336
Chennai, June 30, 2021
UDIN: 21026336AAAAFL3281
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Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Consolidated balance sheet

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investment property
Investment property under development
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Equity accounted investees
Financial assets
- Investments
- Loans
- Other non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets, (net)
Non-current tax assets, (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
- Investments
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Loans
- Other current financial assets
Current tax assets, (net)
Other current assets

Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities, (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities, (net)
Other current liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Venkatesh & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 004636S

Sd/-

CA Dasarathy V
Partner

Membership no.: 026336
Place: Chennai

Date: 30 June 2021

UDIN: 21026336 AAAAFL3281

Rs in crores
As at As at
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
4 931.56 2,339.96
4 7.00 1,286.60
5 84.30 85.39
5 0.70 0.70
6 367.74 374.80
7 3.58 22.06
7 - -
8A 23.69 41.86
8B 435.93 451.29
10 44.39 84.50
11 0.79 3.55
12 384.64 241.34
23.07 4.10
13 308.71 324.77
2,616.10 5,260.92
14 15.57 75.53
15 - -
9 55.00 287.11
16 24.99 92.61
17 21.49 7.18
18 2,655.13 2,321.29
19 1,115.75 1,167.44
19.20 94.29
20 70.78 143.62
3,977.91 4,189.07
46 16.45 78.36
3,994.36 4,267.43
6,610.46 9,528.35
21 211.25 211.25
22 3,504.92 4,092.29
3,716.17 4,303.54
180.23 633.98
3,896.40 4,937.52
23 234.90 1,235.24
24 288.58 666.24
25 3.93 8.54
26 8.66 8.52
27 - -
536.07 1,918.54
28 516.03 824.24
29
148.78 367.05
30 1,378.54 1,365.10
31 5.81 8.30
32 89.29 81.35
33 17.78 26.25
2,156.23 2,672.29
46 21.76 -
2,177.99 2,672.29
6,610.46 9,528.35
3
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Malavika Hegde S V Ranganath
Director Director

DIN: 00136524

Sd/-

R. Ram Mohan

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bangalore

Date: 30 June 2021

DIN: 00323799

Sd/-

Sadananda Poojary
Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore
Date: 30 June 2021
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Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss

For the year ended

Rs in crores
For the year ended

Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 34 853.42 2,552.44
Other income 35 127.81 100.57
Total income 981.23 2,653.01
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 36 156.23 701.55
Cost of integrated logistics services 37 287.56 829.21
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1.45 2.30
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 38 5.90 16.45
Employee benefits expense 39 199.28 405.53
Finance costs 40 260.68 519.09
Depreciation and amortization expense 41 400.49 430.04
Other expenses 42 329.04 975.35
Total expenses 1,640.63 3,879.52
Loss before exceptional item, share of profit of equity accounted investees and tax (659.40) (1,226.51)
Exceptional items 46 (135.94) 1,941.95
Profit/(loss) before share of profit of equity accounted investees and tax (795.34) 715.44
Share of profit from equity accounted investees (net of income tax) (2.46) (14.08)
Profit/(loss) before tax (797.80) 701.36
Tax expense: 43A
- Current tax (14.61) 91.27
- Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) (152.99) (69.31)
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (630.20) 679.40
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (13.20) 1,102.28
Tax expense of discontinued operations 43A 8.70 (66.83)
Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (21.90) 1,169.11
Profit/(loss) for the year (652.10) 1,848.51
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan actuarial gains/ (losses) 1.62 191
Net changes in fair value of equity instruments through other comprehensive income (31.90) 9.62
Share of other comprehensive income in associates and joint ventures, - (0.31)
to the extent not to be classified into profit or loss
(30.28) 11.22
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 43B (0.63) 2.77)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference in translating financial statements of foreign operations - (0.26)
- (0.26)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 43B - -
Other comprehensive income for the year from continuing operations (30.91) 8.19
Other comprehensive income for the year from discontinued operations 0.82 (8.18)
Tax expense of discontinued operations 43B 0.87 (0.76)
Other comprehensive income for the year from Discontinued operations (after tax) (0.05) (7.42)
Other comprehensive income for the year (30.96) 0.77
Total comprehensive income for the year (683.06) 1,849.28
Profit attributable to:
- Owners of the company (583.92) 1,883.53
- Non- controlling interests (68.18) (35.02)
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
- Owners of the company (31.12) 3.15
- Non- controlling interests 0.16 (2.38)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
- Owners of the company (615.04) 1,886.68
- Non- controlling interests (68.02) (37.40)
Earnings per equity share: 45
- Basic (27.64) 89.16
- Diluted (27.64) 89.16
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Venkatesh & Co
Chartered Accountants for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm registration number: 004636S Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Malavika Hegde SV Ranganath
Sd/- Director Director
CA Dasarathy V DIN: 00136524 DIN: 00323799
Partner

Membership no.: 026336
Place: Chennai
Date: 30 June 2021

UDIN: 21026336 AAAAFL3281

Sd/-

R. Ram Mohan

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bangalore

Date: 30 June 2021

Sd/-

Sadananda Poojary
Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore
Date: 30 June 2021
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Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Adjustments:

- Exceptional items

- Share of profit from equity accounted investees in the statement of profit and loss

- Depreciation and amortization expense
- Finance cost (including financial liabilities at amortised cost)
- Interest income (including financial assets at amortised cost)
- Allowance for expected credit losses
-Allowance for doubtful debts reversal
- Dividend income on financial assets
Liability no longer required written back
- (Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant, equipment and intangibles assets
-Impairment
-Provision for diminution in value of investment
-Provision for doubtful advance
-Provision for Supplier Advances
- Stock compensation expense
- Provision for impairment of goodwill
- (Profit) / loss on sale of investments
- Bad debts written off
- Excess provision written back
-Non cash items of assets held for sale
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Trade receivables
- Current and non-current loans
- Other current financial assets
- Other current and non-current assets
- Inventories
- Trade payables
- Current and non-current provisions
- Other current and non-current liabilities
- Other current and non-current financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiaries operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangibles assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, equipment and intangibles assets
Acquisition of investments

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary

Proceeds from sale of equity accounted investees and other investments
Loans given to related parties

Withdrawal of/(Additional) fixed deposits made

Interest received

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term and short-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term and short-term borrowings

Interest paid (including fair value changes on financial liabilities at amortised cost)

Lease liabilities paid
Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Rs in crores
For the year ended
31 March 2020

(797.80) 701.36
(13.20) 1,102.28
135.94 (1,941.95)

2.46 14.08

400.49 430.04

260.68 519.09
(7.70) (23.52)
37.85 40.74
(3.54) (6.97)

- (0.04)

0.77) (3.74)
452 (10.91)
- 2.46
1.86 1.54
1.74 276.94
- 46.17
0.39 0.16
- 133.85

- (2.20)

3.62 731
(1.09) (8.34)

- 14.05
25.45 1,292.40
19.47 241.35
23.18 (35.25)

0.42 (1,026.60)
(2.99) 136.73
43.69 36.67

(24.06) 232.60
(2.95) (2.46)
(5.18) (156.79)

(24.08) (8.85)
52.95 709.85

- (0.26)
14.21 (98.22)
67.16 611.37
(8.05) -

- 1,216.71
(1.86) -
42.77 -
36.08 2,288.46

0.93 (1,500.58)

(12.22) 167.28

7.83 27.07

- 0.04
65.48 2,198.98

- 586.28

(47.00) (4,961.91)

(89.45) (406.64)

(89.83) (188.19)

(226.28) (4,970.46)
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Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Movement in cash and cash equivalents [A +B +C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents for discontinued operations( Assets held for sale)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 16, 28 and 30)
Cash in hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in fixed deposits

- in escrow account

Less: Book overdraft

Less: Bank overdraft

Total cash and cash equivalents

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Venkatesh & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 004636S

Sd/-

CA Dasarathy V
Partner

Membership no.: 026336
Place: Chennai

Date: 30 June 2021

UDIN: 21026336 AAAAFL3281

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Rs in crores
For the year ended
31 March 2020

(271.51) 1,918.87
(93.64) (2,160.11)
(365.15) (241.24)
- 30.27
(365.15) (27151)
1.62 1.50
21.54 54.27
0.70 36.07
113 0.77

- (35.55)
(390.14) (328.57)
(365.15) (271.51)

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

Malavika Hegde
Director

DIN: 00136524

Sd/-

R. Ram Mohan

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bangalore

Date: 30 June 2021

Sd/-

S V Ranganath
Director

DIN: 00323799

Sd/-
Sadananda Poojary
Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore
Date: 30 June 2021
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As at 31 March 2020 Rs in crores
Particulars Equity Other equity
share Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Equity
capital |Debenture |General [Share options|Reserve fund |Capital |Non- Securities | Retained |Foreign Equity Other items of attributable Non- Total
redemption |reserve |outstanding |(As per 45IC of |[reserve |controlling [premium |earnings |currency instruments other to owners of controlling equi
. : . . quity
reserve account Reserve Bank interest translation [through other  |comprehensive the company interests
of India, 1934) reserve reserve comprehensive |income
income
Balance as at 1 April 2019 211.25 62.09 6.45 0.07 0.67 30.99 (118.44)| 2,314.82 36.01 1.22 (5.71) (10.34) 2,529.08 637.06 | 3,166.14
Changes in total comprehensive income:
Profit during the year - - - - - - - - | 1,88353 - - - 1,883.53 (35.02)| 1,848.51
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - - - - - - 1.72) 2.65 2.22 3.15 (2.38) 0.77
Contributions and distributions:
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - 27.91 20.14 - - - - - (48.05) - - - - - -
Transfer to reserve fund - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Share options forfieted - - - 0.27 - - - - - - - - 0.27 - 0.27
Adjustment on adoption of IndAS 116 - - - - - - - - (109.01) - - - (109.01) - (109.01)
Other Adjustments - - - - - - - (0.94) 0.32 (0.36) (0.70) 8.56 6.88 - 6.88
Change in ownership without change in control - - - - - - (10.36) - - - - - (10.36) 34.32 23.96
Balance as at 31 March 2020 211.25 90.00 26.59 0.34 0.67 30.99 (128.80)| 2,313.88 | 1,762.80 (0.86) (3.76) 0.44 4,303.54 633.98 | 4,937.52
As at 31 March 2021 Rs in crores
Particulars Equity Other equity
share Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Equity
capital |Debenture [General |Share options|Reserve fund |Capital |Non- Securities | Retained |Foreign Equity Other items of attributable Non- Total
redemption [reserve |outstanding |(As per 45IC of [reserve [controlling |premium |earnings |currency instruments other controlling :
. ’ . to owners of | ~. equity
reserve account Reserve Bank interest translation [through other  |comprehensive the company interests
of India, 1934) reserve reserve comprehensive |income
income
Balance as at 1 April 2020 211.25 90.00 26.59 0.34 0.67 30.99 (128.80)| 2,313.88 | 1,762.80 (0.86) (3.76) 0.44 4,303.54 633.98 | 4,937.52
Changes in total comprehensive income:
rofit during the year - - - - - - - - . - - - . . .
Profit during th: (583.92) (583.92) (68.18)| (652.10)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - - - - - - - (31.90) 0.78 (31.12) 0.16 (30.96)
Contributions and distributions:
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to reserve fund - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Share options forfieted - - - 0.68 - - - - - - - - 0.68 - 0.68
Adjustment on adoption of IndAS 116 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other Adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Change in ownership control - (40.00) - - (0.67) 7.93 (5.65) 8.98 43.53 3.83 7.70 1.34 26.99 (385.73)| (358.74)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 211.25 50.00 26.59 1.02 - 38.92 (134.45)| 2,322.86 | 1,222.41 2.97 (27.96) 2.56 3,716.17 180.23 3,896.40
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Nature and purpose of other equity:

Debenture redemption reserve
Debenture redemption reserve is created out of the profits which is available for payment of premium for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in
general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

Share options outstanding account

The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in statement of profit and loss with corresponding credit to employee stock options outstanding account.
Reserve fund (as per section 451C of RBI Act 1934)

Reserve fund represents the accumulation of amount transferred from surplus year on year based on the fixed percentage of profit for the year, as per section 451C of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
Capital reserve

Share of pre-acquisition profits of subsidiaries at the time of acquisition by the Group is accounted as capital reserve.

Securities premium

Securities premium account comprises of the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(losses) that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to investors.

Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve comprises of all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations to functional currency.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings
when those assets have been disposed off and the income tax thereon.

Non-controlling interest reserve

The changes in parent's ownership interest without loss of control in the subsidiary are treated as equity transactions, whereby any difference between the amount by which the non controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised in equity and attributed to the parent's equity holders.

Other items of other comprehensive income
The cumulative balances of share of income or loss from associates and joint ventures from other comprehensive income net of taxes has been recognised.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Venkatesh & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 004636S

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Coffee Day Enterprises Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Malavika Hegde SV Ranganath
Director Director

Sd/- DIN: 00136524 DIN: 00323799

CA Dasarathy V

Partner

Membership no.: 026336 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Chennai R. Ram Mohan Sadananda Poojary

Date: 30 June 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore

UDIN: 21026336 AAAAFL3281 Date: 30 June 2021 Date: 30 June 2021
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Coffee Day Enterprises Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1

Group overview

Coffee Day Enterprises Limited (‘CDEL’ or ‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as 'the Group’), associates and joint ventures was originally
incorporated as a private limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956 on 20 June 2008 by conversion of erstwhile partnership firm M/s Coffee Day Holding Co.
The registered office of the Company is located in Bangalore, India. The Company converted into a public Company during the year 2014-15. The Company
undertook an Initial Public Offer of equity shares and subsequently got its equity shares listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange

(NSE) effective 2 November 2015.

CDEL is the parent Company of the Coffee Day Group. The Company owns and operates a resort and renders consultancy services. The Company is also engaged in
the trading of coffee beans. The Company, primarily through its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies as detailed below are engaged in business in
multiple sectors such as Coffee-retail and exports, Leasing of commercial office space, Financial services, Integrated Multimodal Logistics, Hospitality and
Information Technology (IT) / Information Technology Enabled Services (ITeS).

List of subsidiaries with percentage holding —

Name of the entity

ICountry of incorporation and other particulars

I Percentage of holding

DIRECT SUBSIDIARIES

Coffee Day Global Limited (erstwhile Amalgamated Bean a subsidiary of the Company incorporated under the laws of India 82.09%

Coffee Trading Company Limited) (‘'CDGL')

Tanglin Developments Limited ('TDL") a subsidiary of the Company incorporated under the laws of India 87.12%

Coffee Day Hotels and Resorts Private Limited (CDHRPL")  |a subsidiary of the Company incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Coffee Day Trading Limited (erstwhile Global Technology a subsidiary of the Company incorporated under the laws of India 88.77%

Ventures Limited) (CDTL)

Coffee Day Kabini Resorts Limited (CDKRL') a subsidiary of the Company incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

STEP-DOWN SUBSIDIARIES

Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited ('\W2WSPL') a subsidiary of TDL and CDEL incorporated under the laws of India 85.53%
(Till 19 November 2020)

Tanglin Retail Reality Developments Private Limited (TRR') |a subsidiary of TDL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

AN Coffee day International Limited(‘AN CCD”) a subsidiary of CDGL incorporated under the laws of Cyprus 100.00%

Classic Coffee Curing Works a partnership firm with CDGL as a controlling partner having a share 100.00%
of profit of 100%, registered under the laws of India

Coffeelab Limited a subsidiary of CDGL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Coffee Day Gastronomie Und Kaffeehandles GmbH a subsidiary of AN CCD incorporated under the laws of Austria 100.00%

Coffee Day CZ a.s a subsidiary of AN CCD incorporated under the laws of Czech 100.00%
Republic

Sical Logistics Limited ('SLL") a subsidiary of TRR incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9th 34.09%
March 2021)

Sical Infra Assets Limited ('SIAL") a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 53.60%
March 2021)

Sical Iron Ore Terminal Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 63.00%
March 2021)

Sical Iron Ore Terminal (Mangalore) Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%
March 2021)

Sical Connect Limited [erstwhile known as Norsea Offshore  |a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%

India Limited] March 2021)

Sical Mining Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%
March 2021)

Sical Washeries limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 51.00%
March 2021)

Sical Saumya Mining Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 65.00%
March 2021)

Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited a subsidiary of SIAL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%
March 2021)

Sical Supply Chain Solution Limited (erstwhile known as Sical |a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%

Adams Offshore Limited) March 2021)

Bergen Offshore Logistics Pte. Limited (BOFL'") a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%
March 2021)

Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited (‘SMART) a subsidiary of SIAL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 100.00%
March 2021)
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1 Group overview (continued)

Name of the entity

Country of incorporation and other particulars

Percentage of holding

Sical Logixpress Private Limited (erstwhile known as PNX a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 60.00%

Logistics Private Limited) March 2021)

PAT Chems Private Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 84.00%
March 2021)

Develecto Mining Limited a subsidiary of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 51.00%
March 2021)

Way2Wealth Capital Private Limited a subsidiary of TDL incorporated under the laws of India 99.99%

Way2Wealth Enterprises Private Limited a subsidiary of TDL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Way2Wealth Brokers Private Limited (W2WBPL") a subsidiary of W2WSPL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 99.99%
19 November 2020)

Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited (erstwhile a subsidiary of W2WSPL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 99.99%

Total Insurance Brokers Private Limited) 19 November 2020)

Way2Wealth Commaodities Private Limited a subsidiary of W2WBPL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 99.99%
19 November 2020)

Calculus Traders LLP a subsidiary of TDL incorporated under the laws of India 99.99%

Girividhyuth India Limited a subsidiary of TDL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Wilderness Resorts Private Limited (WRPL) a subsidiary of CDHRPL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Karnataka Wildlife Resorts Private Limited (KWRPL) a subsidiary of WRPL incorporated under the laws of India 100.00%

Magnasoft Consulting India Private Limited (MCIPL) a subsidiary of CDTL incorporated under the laws of India 72.98%

Magnasoft Europe Limited a subsidiary of MCIPL incorporated under the laws of United 100.00%
Kingdom

Magnasoft Spatial Services Inc. a subsidiary of MCIPL incorporated under the laws of Denver 100.00%

ASSOCIATES

Barefoot Resorts and Leisure India Private Limited an associate of CDHRPL incorporated under the laws of India 27.69%

JOINT VENTURES

Coffee Day Schaerer Technologies Private Limited a joint venture of CDGL incorporated under the laws of India 49.00%

(‘CDSTPL’)

PSA Sical Terminals Limited a joint venture of SLL incorporated under the laws of India (Till 9 37.50%
March 2020)

Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Private Limited a joint venture of SMART incorporated under the laws of India (Till 50.00%
9 March 2020)

Coffee Day Consultancy Services Private Limited(CDCSPL) (a joint venture of CDEL & CDGL incorporated under the laws of 51.00%
India

Coffee Day Econ Private Limited (CDEPL) a subsidiary of CDCSPL incorporated under the laws of India 99.99%
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2 Basis of preparation

A Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, (the 'Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Details of the Group's other significant accounting policies are included in note 3.
The Group's consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 June 2021

B Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Coffee Day Enterprises
Limited’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest crores unless otherwise
indicated.

C Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) Fair value

Derivative financial instrument Fair value

Share-based payment arrangements Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations Fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefit plan

Equity instrument and Mutual Funds Fair value

D Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

E Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind ASs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:

® note 23: Classification of an item as equity or liability;

o note 3(1): lease classification and straight lining of lease rentals.

® note 54: Determination of significant control and influence over an entity.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgments, assumptions and estimations uncertainties in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

® note 4: depreciation method and useful life of items of property, plant and equipment;

® note 5: depreciation method and useful life of items of investment property;

® note 6: impairment of goodwill;

® note 44: provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

® note 46: determining the fair value less costs to sell of the disposal group

o note 49: measurement of defined benefit obligation - key actuarial assumptions;

e note 55: impairment of financial assets
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F Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Group engages with external valuers for measurement of fair
values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s audit committee. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at
the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent
consideration.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures
are given in the relevant notes.

- Financial instruments (note 55)

- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 55)
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 55)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (note 55)

G Basis of consolidation

Business combinations
Business combinations (other than common control business combinations) on or after 1 April 2015:

As part of its transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to apply Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, to only those business combinations that occurred on or
after 1 April 2015. In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for these business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group. The consideration transferred for the business combination is generally measured at fair value as at the date the control is acquired (acquisition
date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment (see note 6). The gain on business combination is
recognized directly in equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except to the extent related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are generally
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured subsequently and settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is
remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2015:
In respect of such business combinations, goodwill represents the amount recognized under the Group’s previous accounting framework under Indian GAAP
adjusted for the reclassification of certain intangibles.
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G Basis of consolidation (continued)
Non-controlling interests (NCI)
Subsidiary companies
Subsidiary Companies are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

NCI in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
balance sheet respectively. NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not results in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Associates and Joint ventures
Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognized at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 3 (h)(ii) below.

Change in ownership interest

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognized within equity
as non-controlling interest reserve.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

H Changes in significant accounting policies
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in note 3 to all periods presented in these Consolidated financial
statements.
The Group has initially applied Ind AS 115 from 1 April 2018. A number of other amendments are also effective from 1 April 2018. These new standards and
amendments are as follows:
The Group applied Ind AS 116 initially on 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting Ind AS 116 will
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Group applied the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means that it will apply Ind AS 116 to all contracts entered
into before 1 April 2019 and identified as leases in accordance with Ind AS 17 (Ref I)

3 Significant accounting policies

a Revenue recognition
The Group has initially applied Ind AS 115 from 1 April 2018. IndAS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaced Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Guidance Notes. The Group has adopted IndAs 115 using the
cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially applying this standard recognized at the date of the initial application i.e., 1 April 2018.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or
service to a customer.
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a Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of products
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers. For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore, the amount
of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data for specific types of products. In these circumstances, a
refund liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognised.

For customer loyalty programmes, the Group allocates a portion of the consideration received to loyalty points. This allocation is based on the relative stand-alone
selling prices. The amount allocated to the loyalty programme is deferred, and is recognised as revenue when loyalty points are redeemed or the likelihood of the
customer redeeming the loyalty points becomes remote. The deferred revenue is included in contract liabilities.

Sale of services

Service revenues are recognized as the services are performed. Services provided pursuant to a contract are either recognized over the contract period or upon
completion of the elements specified in the contract depending on the terms of the contract. Operating revenues from the integrated logistics services /
distribution and maintenance of vending machines are recognized when the services are rendered. Revenues include unbilled as well as billed amounts.

Revenue from software development on time-and material basis is recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is
recognized using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated total
project cost for each contract.

Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract
estimates. Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the period of the maintenance contract.

Income from operations of resort primarily comprises revenue from room rentals and sale of food and beverage charges. Such service income is recognized when
the related services are rendered unless significant future contingencies exist.

Income from leasing of commercial office space

The Group derives its revenue from licensing of usage of property to companies. License fee is in the nature of operating lease income and is recognized as per
the terms of agreement unless the escalation is not in line with inflation. Where escalation is not in line with inflation revenue is recognized on a straight line
basis over the non-cancellable lease term. Maintenance, electricity and transportation income are recognized on the accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
the agreements with lessees.

Advance rent received is amortized on a straight line basis over the Lock-in period and income is recognized under income from operations.

Income from financial services
Trading income is recognized when a legally binding contract is executed.

Brokerage income and transaction charges are recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of the transaction by the exchanges. Brokerage
income from mutual funds, Initial Public Offer, fixed deposits of Companies and Post Office are accounted on accrual basis as per the statement of accounts
received from the respective organizations.

Income from consultancy services is accounted for on the basis of actual progress/technical assessment of work executed, in line with the terms of respective
consultancy contracts.

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,

the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Depository transaction charges are recognized on completion of respective transaction. Annual maintenance charges for depository accounts are accounted as and
when the services are rendered.

Income from portfolio management fees are recognized on the basis of agreements entered into with clients and when the right to receive income is established.

Futures and options trading income comprises of profit/ loss on derivative instruments and these are marked to market.

Other operating revenues

Import entitlements, which are primarily provided for shipping a specified cumulative volume or shipping to/from specific locations, are recorded on accrual
basis based on actual export revenue for the year and pro-rated based on actual or projected realization of the entitlement. When using realization, we rely on
historic trends as well as economic and other indicators to estimate the recorded revenue for import entitlements.

Revenue from franchisee arrangement consists of sale of coffee products and other related products as well as royalties paid by franchisees to use the ‘Coffee
Day’ brand. Sales of coffee products and other related products are recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to franchisee. Royalty
revenues are recognized based upon a percentage of reported revenues by the franchisee in accordance with the terms of the relevant arrangement unless
significant future contingencies exist.

Income from advertising is recognized ratably over the period of the contract and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract.

Gain/ loss from commodity future transactions is settled on a net basis and recognized on accrual basis in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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a Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income
Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

b Property, plant and equipment
1. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

2. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

3. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method (SLM) as well as written down value (WDV) basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use, and is generally recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is rea